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LANESEND PRIMARY SCHOOL

(A company limiled by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT {continuad)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

The Truslees (who ara also diraclors of the charly for the purposes of the Companles Act) present their
annual report together wih the audited financial statements and Audllors’ report of Lanesend Primary
(Ihe academy) for the period starting 1% September 2016 to 31 August 2017, The annual repori serves
the purposes of both a trustees' report and a directors’ report under company law.

The trust operates an academy for puplls aged 4-11 serving the local area of Cowes and has families
from across the sla of Wight loo. It has a pupil capacity of 420 and had a roll of 348 as at the school
census dale, January 2017.

Structure, governance and management

CONSTITUTION

The acadamy trust Is a company limied by guarantea and an exempt charity. The charitable company’s
memorandum and arlicles of association are the primary governing documents of the academy trust.
The trustees of Lanesend Primary School are also the directors of the charitable company for the
purposes of company law. The charitable company is known as Lanesend Primary.

‘The principal objective of the academy Is to provide education within a primary school setling.

Detalls of the lrusiees who served during the year are Included in the Reference and Adminisiralive
datails on page 1.

MEMBERS' LIABILITY

Each member of the charilable company undsriakes {o contribute o the ussets of the charitable
company in the event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year afler they caase
to be a member, such emount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debte and liabiliiies
contracled before they ceasad (o be a member.

TRUSTEES' INDEMNITIES

Trustess thind party indemnity Is covered by a poficy of insurance with the DFE through their RPA approved [nsurance
schema,
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LANESEND PRIMARY SCHOOL

(A company limited by guarantaa)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

METHOD OF RECRUITMENT AND APPOINTMENT OR ELECTION OF TRUSTEES

The number of Trustees will not be less than thres but (unless otherwise delenmined by ordinary resolution) will not
be subject to any maximum. The Members may appoint up to 10 Truslees, induding Staff Trustees through
any such process as they may delanmine. Tha folal number of Trustees (including the Headteacher) wheo are
employees of the Academy Trust shall not exceed one third of the tolal numbear of Truslees,

Parent Trustees are elecled by parents of regisiered pupils at the academy and musibe a parent of a pugll at the
Academy & the time they are elecied. The number of Parent Trustess required shall be made up by Paent Trustaees
appointed by the Governing Body f the number of parents slanding for elecilon Is less than the rumber of
vacancies,

The Trusiees may also appoint Co-opled Truslees. The Truslees may not co-nplan employee of the Academy
Trust as a Co-opled Trustee if tha number of Trustess who are employees of the academy trus! would then
exceed one third of the lofal number of Trustees (including the Headteacher).

The term of office for any Trustee shall be four years and, subject fo remaining eligible lo be a paricutar type of Trustee,
any Truslee may be re-appointed or re-elected, A Trustee shall cease to hold office if ha resigns his ofiice by
nafice to the Academy Trusl (but only f al least three Trusteas will remain In ofiica when the nolice of resignation Is
lo t2ke effect). A Trusles shall cease lo hold offica If he Is removed by Ihe person or persoens who appolnted him,
however this does nol apply in respect of a Parent Trustee.

Each school year the Trustees shall elect a chairman and a vice-chalman from among thelr number. A
Trustaa who is employed by the academy Trust shall not be efigile for election as chalman or vice-chalman.

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES ADOPTED FOR THE INDUCTION AND TRAINING OF TRUSTEES

All new Truslees complete In-house induction lralning and are given the opportunily lo atiend the Local
Aulhority new Trusles braining sesslons. Each new Truslea s paired with an experienced Truslee who wil provide
additonal support. All Trustees are provided wilh access o palicies, procedures, minutes, accounts, budgels
and other documents that they will need to undertake thelr role as Trustess, All Truslees are invied fo exiemal
and In-house training throughout the year, We also provide aceess to the Hampshkra Truslee Porlal for all lrustees
and the school subscribes to Hampshire Trustee Senices.

ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

The academy has a laadership stucture which consists of the Trusless and the Progression Team. The alm of
the leadership structure Is to devolve responsibility and lo encourage involvement in the decision making at ail
levels. The Trustees are responsible for establishing general policy, adopting the Schoal Improvement Plan and
budgel, approving the statulory accounts, monltaring the academy budge! and schoo! data both 8l local and
netional level. Trustees lead the strategic development about the direction of the academy, capital expendiiure and
stafiing appoiniments. The Progression Team conslsts of the Headteacher, Depuly Headteacher and Phase
Leaders. The Progression Team and Trustees with suppord from the Schoo) Development Managar
implement the policles lald down by the Trustees and report back lo them. The Headleacher Is responsible for
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LANESEND PRIMARY S8CHOOL
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

the appointment of slaff, though appointment panets for teaching posts always includa a Trusiee. The academy
also has Phase Leaders who assist with the day o day operation of the Academy, In pariicular ovarseelng teaching
and leaming qually, staff, and pupls. The PrincipalHeadteacher Is the Accounting Officer. The School
Davelopment Manager Is the Chief Financlal Officer.

ARRANGEMENTS FOR SETTING PAY AND REMUNERATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL

Pay and remuneration for key management Is datermined under the Performanca Managament Policy.
The Headteacher's pay Is determined by a performance management pans! which is made up of 3
trustees and an independent consuliant (who acls as an advisor to the panel). The panel decides the
Headteachar's pay and Is put forward for ralification to the Money Group wha have been dalegated
powars by the Full Governing Body. All other staff are Invited to @ Performance Managemant review
agalnst tergets set and overall school performance. The Headleacher will prasent {he evidence from
these meslings to the Money Group at a Performance Management and Pay review mesting. The
membare of the Money Group will then decide pay changes for staff. These declsions have been
delegated lo the Monaey Group by the Full Governing Body.

RELATED PARTIES AND OTHER CONNECTED CHARITIES AND ORGANSIATIONS

Lanesend Primary is a standsiona academy withaut any organisational conneotions lo other schools,
charities or companies.

Objectives and Activities

OBJECTIVES AND AIMS

The company was sel up on the 1% Seplember 2014. The principal objective and activity of the
Charltable Company Is the operation of Lanesend Primary Schoot. Our school ethos Is to embed a love
of learning; we want our childran to fosler a lifelong love of learning and truly believe that every member
of staff within our team are responsible for supporiing the children in this goal. For this to be achieved:

Chlidren should fael safe and sacura In a caring and slimulating environment

Have access to the whole currlculum and more

The personal wallbeing and all round davelopment of our children Is given high priority
ICT use ta suppori chiidren’s learning and access to the curriculum

Opportuntties {o help them angage in thelr leaming and play

A highly =killed and dedicated team

Standout ieaching and learning

An outward looking school

Strong parental parinerships
Strateglc vision and developmant from Member's and Trustee's through clear communication

and Insight Inlo tha school's strengths and development areas
We do what needs o be done for all children
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LANESEND PRIMARY SCHOOL

(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES® REFORT (continuad)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

OBJECTIVES, STRATEGIES AND ACTIVITIES

Objectives

The malin objeclives for the year ended 31 August 2017 wera as follows:

To ensure all children made expected progress from each data point across year groups and
across phases,

To continue to raise Good Level Davelopment at the end of Receplion, showing a rising trend
and closing the gap betwaan Idenlified groups

To ensure that children reached exceeding In some areas of the Early Years curriculum.
Toclose the gap between Lanesend Primary and national resulls in Year 1 and Yeer 2 Phonics
To improve resulls al KS1 to National results and ensura writing in the school continues to
imprave

To be above floor expectations in the new KS2 assessments

To Improve our combined results at KS2 to 60%.

To Improve writing across the school with a pariicular focus on high achlevers, Pupll Pramlum
children and summer born children.

To develop a pragramme 1o continue lo supporl British Values across the school through a
values curriculum to ralse self-esteem, self-respecl and Iife sklits for all children, for all of lifa.
To conlinue to Increase our lavel of particlpation in sporiing eclivities and events and work
towards achieving the School Games Gold Award

To devetop learning in the outside areas and to achleve an Outdaor Learning sward

ACTIVITIES FOR ACHIEVING OBJECTIVES

Six terms of every day Inlervention for five weeks to close the gap between vulnerable groups.
Planned progress tracking through pupil progress meelings Lo ensure attainment in ReadIng,
Wriling and Maths so thal children meel expected progress.

Further development on data and racking procedures and proformas In school.

EYFS focus on wriling and giving opportunities 1o demonsirate exceeding, work with local EYFS
provider on ralsing standards on enlry.

Children identifled earller as exceeding and then planned opportunities for those children to
develop the depth of leaming In their arsa of strength,

Dally phonics intervention through phonic awareness tralning. Employment of a dyslexic
speciaiist teacher with a focus on early reading.

Changes 1o the timelable and format of phonic {eaching sesslons to ensure progress,

Writing standard crealed in FLIC to ensure all children are ragularly assessed agalnst national
expeclations.

Teachers In Year 2 organised ta thelr sirengths 1o support the children's needs in preparing for
the assessments,

Regular moderation opportunities both in school and within the Cluster.

Tralning altended lo deepen teachers' undersianding of the assessment and national
expaclation.

Pupils idenlified in Year 6 for 1:1 inlerveniion to secure expected slandard, wriling focus across
the year to ensure coverage for end of year teacher assessment. Courses atlended by teachers’
on natlonal assessments and national expectations both in school and within the Cluster.
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LANESEND PRIMARY SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantea)

TRUSTEES' REPORT {continued)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

» Further develop our Remarkable Pupll programme to give oppariunities auiside of school or
through planned competitions and aclivities that enhance their skills and interest.
» Learning Consultants procured to help support the School tmprovement Plan through staff

training days and twilighls.

¢ Pupil Progress mestings hall termly with {eaching staff lo identify children not achieving
expecled pragress.

»  Writing lessons across the schoot that support the new standards and expactations for the end
of K§1 and 2.

s  Half termly writing moderation alongside the use of consistent writing assessment.
Organised author workshops to engage and axlend writing opporiunities for all puplis.
A series of value assemblles to support PHSE and the values of the qualities of a standout
leanar through a range of different opporiunities throughout the school Including celebration
assembly every waek and aclivities in the classroom.

« The mutual respect for lolerance and different faiths and beliefs had a half ermly focus on
ditferent concepls of faith.

» Parenis updated through the newsletter regarding the values focus and certificales awarded
weekly.

e We held several Empty Classroom Days lo plan for outdoor leaming.

s Planning had o support outdoor leaming onca a week for all classes.

a LSA continued to be employed to run a sport club every day after school. PE lead organised
evenia such as triathlon and mulll skills for KS1 as well as KS2. Children atlended a range of
clubs Including a Remarkable Children club In the local area. We were successful in a bid for
:Jloyulea and helmels, and soms teaching siaff received lraining lo enable them to hold cycling
BS80ns,

PUBLIC BENEFIT

Every activity that Lanesend Primary engages in is slways for the sole purpose of bensfiling the children
and enhancing the academy's reputation for delivering oulstanding learning and extra-curricular

experiences for all our children.

The Trustess have complied with their duty o have due regard to the guidance on public benefit
published by the Charity Commisslon in exerclsing their powers or dulles,
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LANESEND PRIMARY SCHOOL

{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

Strategic Report

ACHIEVEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE

Lanesend Primary School ~ Early Years Foundation Stage Attainment: 2017
Gooad Leve] of Development

Early Years Foundation Stage Profile - % Good Level of Development

5%

a@=lonesend =fmisle of Wight edeNational

2014 2018 2016 2017 f
i
]

In 2017, Lanesend Primary Schaol had an Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS) cohorl of 51 pupiis, each pupl!
counting for 2.0% In the overall performance figures. 75% of Lanesend puplls achieved a Gaood Level of
Developmant which was 4% mora than the Nalional figure of 71%. Lanesend (75%) were also above the Isle of
Wight average (71%) for the percentage of pupils achieving a Good Lave! of Development by 4%, a difference
represented by two Lanesend puplls. This is the first time in three years that the Lanesend cutcome for perceniage
achliaving a Good Level of Development Is above both the lsle of Wight and National averages. The Lanesend
Increase of 4% from 71% in 2016 to 75% in 2017 was also the firs| time In three years that the Lanesend
improvement over an academic year was greater relative to the National Increasa over the same period,
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LANESEND PRIMARY SCHOOL

(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

Of the 51 puplis in the 2017 EYFS cohorl, 13 did not achieve a Good Leval of Development. All of these 13 puplls
were assessed as ‘Emerging’ in the Writing Early Learning Goal (ELG). One pupil narowly missed out on their
Good Level of Developmant with Wriling belng the only ELG where they did nat achleve an assessment of 2 or
above, All but ane of the 13 pupils also were assessed as 'Emerging’ In the Reading Early Learning Goal.
Averaqge Total Points Score

Early Years Foundation Stage Profile - Average Total Points Score

34.5 345

33.8
33.5

334

e g e e et B edan b e s

2014 2015 2016 2017
a@=lanesend =S-=lsle of Wight ef@mNational

e R e e e s

Tha Average Total Points Score (ATPS) for the 2017 Lanesend cohart was 32.5 poinis, 0.7 polnis below the Isle of
Wight average aof 33.2 polnts and 2.0 points below the Natlonal average of 34.5. For Lanesend to have matched the
National average In 2017, every pupll would have needed io have made a single higher oulcome in two Early

Learning Goals.

This is the third consecutive year whera Lanesand have had an Average Total Painis Score below both the Isle of
Wight and Nationa! average. Lanessnd's Average Total Points Score of 32.6 was a 0.6 drop from the oulcome
achieved by the school in 2016 and was the lowest Average Total Points Score achlevad by Lanesend in four years.
‘The National average has remained constant at 34.56 from 2016 1o 2017 and therefore, with a decrease in
Lanesend's oulcoms, a widening gap has emerged against National. Despite the 0,2 drop in Isls of Wight ATPS
from 2016 to 2017, Lanesend's reduction of 0.5 over the same perlod has meant thal the gap has widened between
Lanesend Primary and the lIsle of Wight too.

Whilst Lanesend have been above National for the perceniage of puplls achieving a Good Leval of Development
slnce 2014, the school has been below the National Average Total Polnls Scora over the same perlod. This would
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LANESEND PRIMARY SCHOOL

{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continuad)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

suggest that for the last four years, there has been a larger proportion of puplls nationally who are attaining an
'Exceeding’ outcome in thelr Early Learning Goals across the EYFS Profils, than the pupils at Lanesend.

The chart below Indicales thal in 2017, Lanesend were below the Nallonal average for the perceniage of pupils
achleving an ‘Exceeded’ oulcome in 16 of the 17 Early Learning Goals, with the Numbers ELG being the only
exception;

% of pupils achieving Exceeded across each Early Learning Goal

25.0%

Py -
o TR SO -
P i 8,088,

| 15.0% A . P =
f lj gI“““

5 M8H HSC SC/SA MFB MR R W N 55M P&C World Tech EMM Bl

MLznesend 2017 W National 2017

The challenge for Lanesend Primary School In 2018 Is to converl more 'Expected’ oulcomes inlo ‘Exceeding’
outcomes and close the gap on National for the Average Total Poinls Score indicalor,
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LANESEND PRIMARY SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantes)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

Gender Analysls

% Achleving a Good Level of Development - Gender Gap

79% 77% 78%
iI | I Gm I

9% -11% 4%
Lanesend 2017 Iste of Wight 2017 National 2017

e i 8 e 5 e ek i B F B s 8 ot A A e S A i o ek S o e s e S Ak 845 A i

Both the Lanesend Boys and Girls achieving a Good Level of Development was higher than thelr comparator groups
at both Isle of Wight and National lavel.

78% of L anesend giils achieved the Good Level of Development, 1% more than the Natlonal average for Girls (78%)
and 2% above the Isle of Wight average for Girls (77%). Despite the positive performance of the Lanesend girls
above the National averags, in 2016 Lanesend Glris were 5% above the National average (82% vs 77%) whereas
in 2017, the gap has reduced 1o being 1% above National (79% va 78%).

Lanesend Boys achieving a Good Level of Development (70%), performed 4% above the Local Authorily average
(66%) and 6% above the National average for Boys (84%). This outcome for the Lanesend Boys in 2017
damonstrates significant improvement from 2016 when the 61% of Lanesend Boys achleved a Good Level of
Development, which was 1% below hoth the Isle of Wight and National averages of 82%.

The Lanesend gender gap (-8%) for ‘% achieving a Good Level of Development’ Is smaller than that of the Isle of
Wight {-11%) and National (-14%). In 2016, Lanesend had a gender gap of -21% but as a result of the improved
performance of the Boys and relative regrassion o Natlonal for the Girls In 2017, that gender gap has reduced to -
8%, an improved nerrowing of the gap by 12%.
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LANESEND PRIMARY SCHOOL,

(A company limited by guarantea)

TRUSTEES' REPORT {continued)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

Average Total Points Score - Gender Gap

35.7

323 328 —

Gap
——
Gap
i -0.5
-2.4
Lanesand 2017 Isle of Wight 2017 Nationaf 2017

Wilh the overall Lanesend cohort being below Average Total Polnls Score relative 1o the isle of Wight end National
averages, il Is unsurprising that both the Girls and the Boys are below the Average Tolal Polnts Score for thelr Local
Authorlly and Natlonal comparalors. The gender gap however for Lanesend is -0.5 points, which is a smaller gender
gap than the Isle of Wight gender gap {-1.7 poinls) and the National gender gap (2.4 points). Howevar, the low
Average Total Points Score oulcomes for boih the Girls and the Boys would indicate thal in this Instance, desplte
the small gender gap, ralsing the Average Total Poinis Score for both the Girls and the Boys is more of & priority
than narrowing the gender gap.
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LANESEND PRIMARY SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantes)

TRUSTEES® REPORT (continued)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

Performance Gap Analysis

Percentage attalnment gap between all children and bottom 20%

W Lanesend 2017 Isle of Wight 2017 W National 2017

This Indicalor represenis the performance pap (using Avarage Toial Point Scores) bstween the average of the
fowest 20% attaining children and tha median of all pupiis In the cohort. Please see the table below which provides
a breakdown of these figures:

Isle of
Lancsend Wight National

Median {50th Percentile) 34.0 34.0

Average {All Children) 33,2 34.5

Average (Lowest 20% attaining children) 5 23.2 23.2

Percent attainment gap between  all children and
hottom 20% 31.6% 31.7%

It Is preferable to have a lower performance gap as this would Indicate that the lower allaining EYFS puplis have
not substantially underperformed relative to the other puplis In the cohort. In 2017, Lanesend Primary School had a
psrformance gep of 34.1%, 2.5% above the lsle of Wight performance gap of 31.6% and 2.4% above the Natlonal
performance gap of 31.7%. We are able to deduce from this that Lanesend low aitaining pupils in the EYFS profile
(the boltom 20%), were outperformed by the same cohort of law attaining pupils within the Local Authority and

Natianally.

Page 13



LANESEND PRIMARY SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

Additionally, the performance gap for Lanesend in 2016 was 21.5% and therefore the Lanesend performance gap
has Increased by 12.6% to 34.1% In 2017. The Isle of Wight and National performance gaps have widened between
2016 (IOW: 27.6% & National: 31.4%) and 2017 (IOW: 31.6% & Nalional: 31.7%), but not {o the same extent as the
widened performance gap al Lanssend belween 2018 and 2017. This would therefore indicale a regression
relative o Isle of Wight and Nalional averages for Lanesend for this indicator In 2017,

Lanesend Primary School — Phonlcs Attalnment: 2017

Year 1 Phonics - % Working at the Expected Standard
81% 81%

2014 2015 2016 2017

~s=lanesend -—o—isle of Wight ~e—Natlonal
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LANESEND

PRIMARY SCHOOL

(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

Year 1 Phonics

Sucecesses

End of Year 2 Phonics - % Working at the Expected Standard

92%

2015 2016 2017

—&~lanesend —0—Isle of Wight =a=National

Challenges
The percentage of Year 1 puplls achieving the
phonics standard decreased by 3% from 77% in
2016 to 74% In 2017, reversing an increasing
frend seen over the past few years,

The Nalional average for parcentage of puplis
achleving the phonics standard has remalned at
81% betwaen 2016 and 2017. The Lanesend
decrease of 3% maans that the gap 1o National

has been widened by 3% from 2016 o 2017.

The percentage of Year 1 Lanesend pupils
achleving the phonlcs standard (74%) is 7%

below the Nationa! average (81%)
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LANESEND PRIMARY SCHOOL

(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

End of Year 2 Phonics

SUCIRS5ES Challanges
The percentage of Year 2 Lanesend puplls 50% of Lanesend puplls achleved the Expacted
having achieved tha expacted phonics standard | Standard in Phonics at the end of Year 2,2%
Increased from 87% In 2016 to 90% in 2017 less than the National average.
The Natlonal average of end of Year 2 phonics
has improved by 1% from 2016 (91%) to 2017
{92%), whilst Ihe Lanesand oulcames have
shown a greater improvement from 2016 (87%)
fo 2017 (80%), therefore narrowing the
Lanesand / National gap from 4% In 2016 to 2%
| In 2017.
The Isle of Wight average decreased by 4%
from 81% in 2016 lo B7% in 2017 which means
thal the Lanesend ouicome of 80% Is above the
Ll_sle of Wight averags for the first time In 3 years.
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LANESEND PRIMARY SCHOOL

(A company limited by guarantes)

TRUSTEES' REPORT {continued)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

Langsend Primary School — Key Stage 1 Attainment: 2017

Lanesend Primary School - 2017 Key Stage 1 Teacher Assessments
Sclence

Reading e
Writing T

lede ot Whipht - Greater Bepth 2087 MNavona! - Expecied Standard 2017

Headline Summary

{n 2017, Lanesend Primary School had a Key Stage 1 cohort of 80 puplls, sach pupil counting for 1.6%
in the overall performance figures. In Reading, Maths and Sclence, this Key Siage 1 cohort achisved
better ouleomes than those of the Isle of Wipht and National for ‘% achieving the Expecled Standard+
(EXS) and ‘% working at Greater Depth (GDS)'. The perceritage of pupils achleving GDS in Reading
(32%) was the headline Indicator shawing tha best performance relalive to Local Authority (24%) and
National (25%) averages which meant that at Lanesend, four more pupils achisved a GDS in Reading
than would have from a class reprasenting the Natlonal cchort.

The percentage of pupils achlaving the Expected Standard in Reading (78%) and Maths (77%) exceed
the National comparalora (Reading 76%, Maths 76%) and the difference belween Lanesend and the
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LANESEND PRIMARY SCHOOL
{A company limited by guarantae)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

National figures Is represented by a count of two pupils In Reading and one pupil In Maths. 27% of
Lanesend pupils achleved a GDS in Maths which was 11% and 6% greatar than the Isle of Wight {16%)
and Natlonal (21%) comparatars.

95% (57 pupils from the cohort of 80) achieved the Expecled Standard in Sclence. This Is 12% greater
than the Natlonal average of 83%.

Wiriting at Key Stage 1 proved {o have the lowest performance oulcomes relative lo National
comparisons and would be idenlifled as the subject where Lanesend faces ils greatest challenge. 65%
of Lanesend puplis achleved the Expected Standard in Wrlling, 3% below the National averags of 68%.
Had 2 additional puplls of the 17 who achieved a ‘Working towards the Expected Standard’ In Writing
able to convart lo ‘Working at the Expected Standard’ then Lanesend's Willing outcome wauld have
also been in-line with the Natlonal average. However, the percentage of puplls achleving a Greater
Depth in Writing (20%) was In excess of the Local Authorlly average {13%) and Nationat average (16%).

Trend Analysils

2017 K$1 Reading Trend 2017 KS1 Writing Trend
75% ::: 68% — 68%
Tl Q ssﬁq 65%
7% 2%
62% 62%
3%
8%
z“; : 25% . 20%
2% 24% e 16%
13 .
1 13%
2016 017 ! 2016 2017 ; 2016 2017 | 2016 2017
1 I
Reading % EXS+ | Reading % GDS i Writing % EXS+ i Writing % GDS
w@=tanesend Primary School ==g=|sie aof Wight —@=—Natianal ==L onesend Primary School —a—{sle of Wight —@==Natlona!
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

Tha 2016 to 2017 trends for the '% achieving the Expected Standard’ in Reading, in Wriling and In Maths
ware above or Indine with the Natlonsl rate of improvement for this threshold Indioator. in Reading,
Lenesend's oulcome Improved 2% more than National, In Wrlling, Lanesend had the same rale of
improvement as National and In Maths, the school had a betler rale of improvement than Nationa! by
3%.

Incraasing trends, greater than Natlonal, were also evident in the ‘% achleving a Greater Depth’ in both
Reading and Wrlling. in Readlng, L.anesend's '% achieving a Greater Depth’ Increased 4% from 2018
to 2017, while the National avarage increased 1% over the same perlod. KS1 puplls st Lanesend
demonsirated a large Improvement in Writing with 20% of puplls achieving Greater Depth In Writing
compared o the 10% who achievad this threshald In 2016, Natlonally, the increase for this indlcator was
3% from 13% In 2016 to 16% In 2017. The *% achleving Grealer Depth’ In Maths at Lanesend decreased
1% from 2016 to 2017 white the Natlonal average for this Indicator Increased by 3%, meaning that
Lanesend's parformance, relative to National, regressed by 4%

Key Stage 1 Progress and Prior Attainment

Lanesend have KS1 progress oulcomes which are expecled to be broadly inline or above National
averaga across all EYFS prior altainment groups for Reading and Maths and for the EYFS Expected
end Excasding priar aitainment groups in Wriling. The sole prior aitainment group and subject for which
Lanesend Is expected to be below the Nalional average for EYFS to KS1 progress are thase pupils who
achleved an EYFS outcome of Emerging In Wriling.The 2017 Lenasend / Natlonal gap has been
calculated provisionelly using the 2016 Nailonal average iaken from the RAISE online Inspaction

Dashboards,
2017 KS1 Maths Trend 2017 KS1 Science Trend
73% - b
m-< T
72% 68%
a3%
8k *
B2 Qe
B e 27% 818 uoLe
B
1
16% -
2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017
Maths % EXS+ Maths % GDS Sclence % EXS
w=gh==1anesend Primary School —0~—Isle of Wight ==@re= Nationa) w@-=Lanasend Primary School —0-xle of Wight ==@=Natlanal
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LANESEND PRIMARY SCHOOL

(A company limited by guarantae)

TRUSTEES' REPORT {continued)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

Lanesend
2017
Cohor EXS+ GDS
t

10

2016
National

EXS+ GDS

| i 2017
Gap Lanesend Gap*

EXS+ GDS GD5 EXS+ GDS

43

Lanesend
2017
Cohor EXS+ GDS
t

12

2016
National

EXS+ GOS

2017
Gap | Lanesend Gap*

EXS+ GDS |EXS+ GDS EXS+ GDS

41

Lanesend
2017
Cohor EXS+ GDS

2016
National

EXS+ GDS

2017
Gap Lanesend Gap*

EXS+ GDS !EXS+ GDS EXS+ GDS

* Inthe absence of 2017 Nallonal figures, the 2017 Gaps are calculated using the 2018 National averages.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

il G nal : Dis ta upil

2016 Disadvantaged Cohort: 19 Pupils (48% of all
pupils)
2017 Disadvantaged Cohort: 23 Pupils (38% of all
puplis)

2016 2017 Gap Analysi

w

anesend

National

Lanesend

Naticnal
Nationalty *

L
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vs Lanesend

QOther Pupils
Bisadvantaged
vs Other Pupils

Disadvantaged
Other Pupils

. . ... Disadvantaged 2016 -28% -23%
EXS+ in Writ ; =
T Other Pupils 2017 -28% -24%

| EXS+in Reading

. Disadvantaged 2016 -27% -18%
EXS+ in Maths > :
Other Pupils VIY -12% -9%

2017 KS1 Disadvaniaged Pupils have demonsiraled an Improved sel of outcomes across Reading and
Maths relalive o the achoal's oulcomes In 2016. in K§1 Reading, the n-school gap has narrowsd by
22% and the gap to Other Puplis nationally has narrowed by 14% meaning that the atiainment of the
Disadvaniaged Puplls is broadly In line with the attalnmeni of Other Puplls in schoal and Othar Pupils
nationatly. In KS1 Maths, the in-school gap between Lanesend Disadvantaged puplls and Lanesend
Other Pupl's has halved bslween 2018 (gap of 27%) and 2017 {gap of 12%). The main gap between
Lanesend Disadvantaged and Other Puplls Nationally has narrowed fram 19% in 2016 o 8% In 2017.
Performance outcomes In KS4 Writing has ramalned broadly similar for Disadvantaged puplls from 2016
(47% achleving Expecled Standard +) to 2017 (48% achleving the Expected Standard+) and also for
Lenasend's Other Pupils from 2016 (75% achieving the Expected Standard+) to 2017 (76% achleving
the Expeclsd Standard+). Therefore the In-achool gap and gap te Other Puplls natienally in KS1 Writing
has remained broadly the same between 2016 and 2017.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT {continued)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

Pupil Group Analysis: SEN Pupils

D () Q D OnNao
0 28 2% 40 67%
0 10 26% 16 27%
P 1 3% 4 %
016 {
0 85% 82% 7% 85% 84% 11%
X PR 40% 32% 8% 56% 4% 22%
pielle 0% 14% -14% 0% 14% 4%
No SEN 75% 73% 2% 80% 7% 13%
EXS+ in Writing gtEa’:] Sr:lppl'(;rf 30% 22% 8% 18% 23% 4%,
cmen
EHCP 0% Sk e 0% 9% -9%
No SEN 86% 80% 6% 98% 83% 15%
EXS+ in Maths g:&l’:l Supptc;ri 40% 33% 7% 38% 35% 3%
datemen
EHCP 0% 14% -14% 25% 14% 11%

* 2017 Gaps are calculated with 2016 National data until the 2017 National data becomes available,

2017 SEN support puplls had higher outcomes in KS14 Reading than in 2016 resulling in an increasing
trajeclory trend and a greater variance above the Natlonal average. One SEN Support pupil achleved a
Grealer Depth In Reading in 2017. 38% of SEN Support puplis achieved the Expected Standard+ in
Maths which was broadly the same as the 40% of SEN Support puplis achleving the Expecled
Standard+ In Maths In 2018, Despite the Increase of 2% In the National average for this Indicator,
Lanasand are slill above the Naliona! average, albeit the Nalional outcome s closer (o the Lanesand
outcome than it was in 20186,
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (continuead)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

3 of the 16 SEN Support pupils (19%) achlsved the Expected Standard+ in Wrifing In 2017, whereby 3
of the 10 SEN Support pupiis (30%) In 2016 achleved the Expected Standard+ in Wrillng. Therefore,
the gap lo the National average will have widened between 2016 and 2017, To have achleved a beller
outcome in the Expacted Standard+ in Writing in 2017 than In 2018, an additional 2 SEN Support pupils,
out of the 10 who achleved ‘Working Towards the Expected Standard’, needed to have convarled fo the
Expected Standard in Writing.

In 2017, one of the four KS1 Lanesand puplis with an EHCP achieved the Expected Standard in any
subject, in this case, Maths. The single Statement / EHCP pupll from 20186 did nol achiava the Expected
Standard in any subject. In both Reading and Writing in 2017, three of the four EHCP puplls achleved a
taacher assessment of 'Working towards the Expecled Standard’ and in the Reading KS1 les|, these
three puplis achieved an average scaled scorg of 90.3.

Pupi, Analysis:

tanesend Primary School - 2017 Key Stage 1 Reading
90,0%

80.0%
70.0%
60.0%
50.04

A0, 0%

30.0%

Wrelting Maths
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LANESEND PRIMARY SCHOOL

(A company limited by guarantes)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

The percenlage of Lanesend boys achleving the Expecled Standard in each of Reading, Writing and
Maths was above bolh the Isle of Wight and National average across all three subjects, The stronges|
performing subject for Boys, relalive lo the National average was In Reading where 82% achleved the
Expecled Standard+,11% greater than the Natfonal average of 71%. The 2017 KS1 outcomas for
Boys are a significant improvement from those In 2016 whera the Lanesend Boys were below the (sle
of Wight and National averages in all three subjecls,

The 2017 KS1 Girls cohort had outcomes for the % achisving the Expeclad Standard+ in bolh Reading
and Wiriting that ware below both the (sle of Wight and Natlonal average. However, In Maths, 75% of
Lanesend Girls achleved the Expaclad Standard+ which was 4% above the Isle of Wight average (71%)
and broadly In line with the Natlonal average (76%). Conversely to the Boys in 20186, the Girls In 2016
were above the Isle of Wight and National averages for % achieving the Expacted Standard+ in bolh
Reading and Maths and were broadly In line with Nationa! for % achleving the Expacied Standard In
Wiriting.

The trends In gender performance from 2018 to 2017, couldn't have more disparlly. The Boys hava
shown significant Improvement relalive to the Natlonal across all three stbjects whilst the Girl's
perfarmance has regrassed relative to the National average In all three subjecls from 2016 lo 2017.

Lanesend Pri 00l — Key Stage 2 Attainment and Progress: 2017

tanesend K52 Results 2017
Progress Scores and Confidence Intervals

Uppar Confldance Intarval,

+4.3
Upper Confidence Interval,
+2.4
Proprass Score, +2.6
Upper Canfidence Interval,
+1.1
Ly
Lower Confidence Interval, i
0y Pt g e
. Eqi s n
Lower Confidence Intarval, -
0.6
Lower Confidence Interval, -
2.1
wmmsReading  ———Writing Maths Natlonat
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TRUSTEES' REPORT {continued)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

Progress

In 2017, Lanesend Primary School achieved Improved Progress scores In Reading, Writing and Maths.
Reading had the highest progress score of +2.6, which is 8 statistically significant oulcoma abave the National
average, Maths had a posltive progress score of +0.8 and, as the lower confidence interval is below tha Natlonal
average, Is considered {o ba broadly in line with the National average. Despite the negative progress scare in
Wiriting of -0.5, this oulcame is considered (o also ba broadly In fine with the Natlonal average.

The 2017 progress scores In each of Reading, Writing end Maths is were an improvement on those achlevad
In 2016:

+0.7 +1.9
-1.6 0.6 +1.1
+0.8 +2.7

Shaded scores Indicale results that are slatistically significant. Lanesend's greatesl improved progress score
was n Maths with an increase in progress score from 2016 to 2017 of +2.7. The subject with the next highest
improvemant was Reading which increased by +1.8 from 2018 to 2017 and finally, Writing improved by +1.1
from last academlc year,

From the 2017 cohort of 63 puplls, 52 had valid prograss scores across all thres subjacls as one pupll did nol
have Key Stage 1 prior attalnment from which progress could be measured. 63% (33 puplis) achieved a posiiive
progress score in Reading, 44% (23 puplis) achleved a positive progress score in Wriling and 56% (30 puplis}
achleved a positive progress score In Malths, 27% (14 pupils) achieved positive progress scoras in each of
Reading, Writing and Maths. Of these 14 pupils:

« & were Boys

» 7 ware Disadvantaged

o 5were SEN Support

= and 2 had Low Prior Allsinment
One of tha puplls with a Low Prior Attzinmenl (Leve! 1 In KS1 Reading, Writing and Maths) achleved progress
scoras of +22.03 in Reading, +2.57 In Writing and +12.07 In Maths, achieving a Higher Score in Reading too.

Progress — Disadvantaged Puplls

The progress made by Lanesend's Disadvantaged pupils in 2017 was grealer than the progress made by Other
Pupils nationally in 2018 in both Reading and Maths. in Writing, Lanesend's 2017 Disadvanteged cohort
equalled the 2017 Natlonsl average for progress of All Pupils and was broadly In line with the progress mede
by Natianal Other Puplis In 2016.
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FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

Progress Comparator Group
Subject FPupil Graup Score Comparator Group Prograss

2016 NationaliOther: 5
Reading - Disadvantaged Pupiis +3.6 (0T PSR e e |
£2017/LanesendOther;Puplis: [

2018 National Other

Wrling  Disadvantaged Pupils 00 B n_e_s_a,ndjmig“ﬁ‘d'.__ﬁ"'—éﬂ"‘:* i T e
7/LanesendOthierPuplis: || =t I 3

Disadvantaged Fupils  +(3.9

Lanesend Disadvantaged Puplls made more progress than the Lanesend Other Pupils in each of Reading,
Wrlling and Maths in 2017.

There wera 30 pupils in Lanesend's 2017 Disadvanlaged cohort, of which 20 pupfls (67%) achleved a positiva
progress score in Reading, 13 pupils (43%) achleved a poshive progress score in Writing and 17 puplls (57%)
schieved a posilive progress score In Maths. 7 Disadvantaged puplis (23%) achlaved positive progress scores
in each of Reading, Wriling and Maths, of which 4 of these puplls were SEN Suppast. Conversely, §
Disadvantaged pupils (17%) achleved negalive progress scores in each of Reading, Writing and Maths
although one of those puplls had an EHCP.

Progress - SEN Puplils

2016

2017

% of
cohort

Count % of cohort Count

No SEN

SEN Support 17 45% 21 40%
Statement /

EHCP 3 8% 4 8%
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FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

2016 & 2017 Progress Scores for SEN Groups

SEN Supet N 5.6

i .
SEN Statemant / EHCP 27— 3 +10.7

0,2
SEN Suppart 07 ‘

SEN Statemeni / EHCP 46 ﬂE‘I +29
SEN Support 03 [ o

SEN Stalemant / EHCP 55 H ; =

(12016 Lanesend = 2017 Lanesend

Writing

in addition to the SEN Support puplis having made more progress In Reading and Maths than all pupils
with a similar prior attainment nationally, in both subjects there has been greater progress than that
made by Lanesand's SEN Supporl pupils in 2018. In Wriling, 2017 SEN Supporl puplls made less
progress than all puplls nationally with a similer prior atiainment as well as less progress ihan the
school's SEN Support cohort in 20186,

The 2017 SEN Stalement / EHCP cohort comprised of only 4 puplis and a small change in the outcome
of an individual pupll can have a disproportionate impact on the outcome of the pupll group. Bearing the
group slze In mind, progress of SEN Stalement / EHCP pupils has dropped from being abova the
National average In Reading and Writing in 2016 to being balow the Nalional average In 2017.
Progress for SEN Statament / EHCP pupils in Maths (-9.5) Is also befow the 2017 Natlonal average for
all pupils and substantially balow the 2016 progress scora at Lanesend of -2.8, This decresss in Maths
progress for SEN Statement / EHCP pupls demonstrales an opposing trand o the Increased progress
overall In Maths for the whole KS2 Lanesend cohort.
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Progress — Prior Attainment

2016 & 2017 Progress Scores for Prior Attalnment Groups

~
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Low Middle High | low Middle  figh | Low Middle High
Reading Writing ! Maths

D2016 Lanesend  W2017 Lanesend

Prograss In Reading and Maths for puplis with a low prior altalnment remains higher than the National average
aithough lower Lhan the progress scores achieved by Lanesend in 2016, Low prior altalnment puplls made leas

progress In Writing than similar pupils nationafly, a decraase from the positive prograss score made in this
subject in 2016.

The middle prior altainment group showad the most consistent Improvemenl from the 2016 lo 2017. In each of

Reading, Wriing and Malhs Lhis pupll group were balow the National average in 2016 but are now above the
Nalions! average In 2017 in all three subjects,

Pupils with a high prior attalnment improved from a 2018 prograss score in Reading of -2.1 to a 2017 progress
score n Reading of +0.0, an improvement which has seen this group meet the National average. Improvements
in 2017 were also evident in the Writing and Maths prograss scores for the high prior atlainmen! group, although
there slill remains a challenge with this group in these subjecls as prograss is stilt below the National average.
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Htainment
— T 75% 7%
% 59% 70%
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FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

106

s Lanesend Primary

104 104 iD4 School

= {sie of Wight
103

Average Scaled Score In Reading  Average Scolad Score in Misths Avarage Scalad Score tn Grammar,
Punciuation and Spelling

Expected Standard & Higher Standard

in 2017, Lanesend Primary Schoo! had a Key Stage 2 cohort of 53 puplls, of which 55% (29 pupiis)
achieved the Expected Standard+ in Reading, Wriling and Maths combined, The Nationa! averaga was
61% for all state funded scheols In England, a difference of four pupils within the Lanesend cohorl.
Lanesend Primary equaled the Isle of Wighl average for this key headline atlalnment measure.
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FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

The charts below demonstrate the attalnment performencs of the 2017 Lanesend K52 cohort in terms
of thelr cutcomes at the Expected Standard+ and Higher Standard for each individual subjecl and the
three subjects combined. The Isle of Wight and Nationa! averages have baen included to provide

contaxt;

ey g 3y e bam Ty PO

K52 Reading, Wiiting & Maths Combined
Threshold Trend

r 61%

3% g5
= - 55%
50%

i
{

5% G
4% ;‘zﬁ - gﬁ
o 2 ey ot e o bt s 2 _0"-.——-—_'____._- i
2016 2017 2016 2017
% achlaving the Expected % achleving the High Score In
Standard in R,W,M R,W,M

@] anesend Primary School =o—(sie of Wight s=g==Nationsl

K52 Reading Threshold Trend
%

66% 71%
6% 1%

G1%

25%
= 24%
18% — 23%
16%
2016 2017 I 2016 2017

% achleving the Expectad % nchleving tha High Scora in
Standard in Reading Reading

=@=Lanesend Primary School «=0=1sle of Wight —&®=National

To provide additional conlex! to the attainmant measures above |t Is Important to acknowledge the Key
Stage 1 outcomes of the 2017 KS2 cohort relative to the National average In 2013.

This table shows the differance in threshold indicators, represented by pupil numbers, belwsen the
performance outcomes of the 2013 KS1 cohart and the 2017 KS2 cohort. With the exception of '%
achleving the Expected Standard+ [n Reading', all other 2017 headline measures are below the National
average. Howaver, as the table demonstrales, ihe gap between Lanesend and the Natlonal average, in
terms of threshold Indicator outcomes, has narrowad significantly between the 2013 KS1 cohort and the
2017 KS2 cohort. The only indicalor in which the school has regressed, relative to National, Is "%
achleving Greater Depth In Writing'. All other indicators represent an improvement greater or equal o

the improvement made nalionally.
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KS2 Writlng Threshold Trend K52 Maths Threshold Trend
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

Attalnment - Disadvantaged Puplils

Lanesend Primary School's 2017 performance at Key Staga 2 is more contextuallised whan cansidering
the key pupil group aggregations, particularly as this cohort was 57% pupll premium, a group
proporiionally larger than the National average. In the absence of 2017 Natlonal averages for Other
Puplls, we are able to draw comparisons on the in-school gap {Disadvantaged Pupils va Other Pupils in
Sohool) and the gap belween the 2017 Lanesend Disadvantaged pupfls and 2016 Other Puplls
nationslly.

Gap Analysis

- QW
ot} 'E 0 W "
- 3858 BRSO
C @ Cc = N3 Cc = 0 =
o 7 S ea w Eu &
= Q il = o % o
= = €2 fg = o= o2
< 5 T a- £ fEd m
I =) ) 6 o | I O =
o ay
EXS+ in Disadvantag
o ed
Reading o or Pupils
EXS+ i Disadvantag :
witng 63% | 64% | 60% | - -5% ~16%
. SIUTNRUHIEEN 68% | 79% | 74% - -14% -10%
. . Bisadvantag
FASEIn ed 53% | 68% | 67% [ - -26% -23%
R LI 79% | 76% | 83% | - _16% 9%
EXS+in Dlisa(ivantag 53% | 30% | 47% = 8% o
Reading, et
Writing and .
Maths SR EVBIEN 47% [ 60% | 65% | - -19% -13%

* 2017 Disadvantaged Pupils are compared with 2016 Other Pupils Nationally unlil the 2017 dala becomes
avallabla.

Despite the slrong progress performance by the 2017 Disadvaniaged puplls, their performance In the
threshold attainment measures Is generally below the performance of the school's 2016 Disadvantaged
puplls. With the exception of Maths, the in-school gep and gap to Other Puplls has widened since 20186,
The gap between Disadvaniaged pupils and 2018 Other Puplis nationally has remalned broadly the
same In Reading, widened by 3% in Writing, narrowad by 14% in Maths and widened by 6% in Reading,
Writing and Malhs combined,
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Attainment - SEN Pupils

2016 { 2017
% of
Count % of cohort | Count cohart

No SEN

SEN Support
Statement /
EHCP

Lanesend
WEHTshEY
Lanesend

SEN Support 65% 33%
Staternent / EHCP JIET 53%

SEN Support 59% 32% 27% 20% - -3%

EXS+ in Reading

EXS+ in Writing

Statement / EHCP 0% 13% -13% 25% - 12%
. SEN Support 65% 36% 29% 57% - 21%

t
O TNl 0% | 4% | 1% | 0% | - | 4%

EXS+in SEN Support 47% 16% 31% 19% - 3%
Reading, Writi
and a9 satement /EHer IR EIERED ] 7%

* 2017 Gaps are calculated with 2016 Nalional data until the 2017 National data bacomes aveilable.

40% (21 pupils) of the 2017 Lanesend KS2 cohort were SEN Support, In the absence of 2017 National
data for SEN pupils, comparisons In school psrformance from 2016 and 2017 [s made against 2016
National data. In Reading, SEN Support puplls achleved a higher outcome in percaniage achleving the
Expecled Standard+ in 2017 (87%) than 2016 {85%). In Wrlling, the percentage of SEN Support pupils
achleving the Expecled Standard+ dropped 30% from 59% in 2016 ta 20% In 2017, which meant that
Lanesend went from being above National for this indicator in 2016 to below Nationat In 2017. Therefore,
Wriling was the subject that had most greatly contributed to the 28% drop In '% achleving the Expacted
Standard+ In Reading, Wriling and Malhs' from 47% In 2046 to 19% In 2017. SEN attalnment In Maths
decreased slighlly from 65% achieving the Expecled Standard+ In Maths In 2016 to 57% In 2017.
However, this 2017 outcome Is stil significantly above the 2016 National average,
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The 2017 SEN Statement/ EHCP cohort comprised of only 4 pupils and pleass bear in mind that a smali
change in the outcome of an Individual pupll can have a disproportionate Impact on the outcome of the
pupll group. 1 pupll with an SEN Stalement / EHCP achleved the Expeoted Standard+ In Reading and
Wiiling. None of the SEN Statement / EHCP pupils achleved the Expected Standard+ in Maths and
subsequently no SEN Statement / EHCP pupils achieved the Expectad Standard In Reading, Wiiting
and Maths',

Grammar, Punctuation and Spelling Attainment

Allalnment for Lanesend In Grammar, Puncluation and Spelling Is represented by 76% of puplls
achiaving the Expected Standard+, 2% below the Natlonal average of 77% and 6% above the Isle of
Wight average (70%). The 2017 oulcome for Lhis indicator was a 4% increase on the 2016 outcome of
71%. The Nallonal average Increased 5% over lha same period, widening the gap balween Lanesend
and Natlonal by 1%.

Lanesend achieved an average scaled score of 105 In Grammar, Punctuation and Spelling, exceeding
the Isle of Wight average of 104 and 1 scaled score below the National average of 106.

Whole school attendance

We set a target of 97.85% for the academic year 2016-2017. We atlalned 87.34%, When compared {o
attendance figures of schools with similar levels of deprivation our atlendance s excellent and whan
compared with national levels it Is within the top 10% of all UK schools. Qur pupils who have been
awarded the Pupll Premlum Grant achieved 97.26% altendance for this academlc year. Persistent
absenteelsm is low at & children (1.38%) 2016-17. We have had no exclusions for three years.

Whole school achlevaments

Celebrations across 2016-17 include en OFSTED Inspaction on 12t July 2017, The school continued
lo be rated as a good school. The report says we have made a good qualily educalion and is now weli
regarded as a good school within the lecal community. There Is energy and ambition with clear viglon
for Improving the school, the school ensures a wide range of interesting and stimulating opportunities
within a nurturing environment. The school has gone from sirength to strength and have significanily
Increased over the academic year 20168-2017 with for the first time Reception intake for 2017-18 being
oversubsoribad. This is now a pattern in several of our ysar groups too. [t wea noted that each individual
children's learning and welfare needs are a high prierly and that we establish strong teams and work
together lo support all the chifdren. Safeguarding was noted lo be effective and the high priorlty that we
put on the wellbelng and safety of all children end staff was clearly evidenced. Children are keen fo
come {0 school because they enjoy laaming which is interesting and exciting.

Another busy year at Lanasend, with thrae whole school toples; Roald Dahl, Mads on the Isle of Wight
and India. From tha very beginning with our whole school Roald Dahl dress up day lo our frips to Malilda
tha Musical in Landon, BFG cinema trip, Isle of Wight Literary Festival, our cardboard challenge day,
Chrisimas production, Christmas Fayre and our beautiful outside Nalivity. [t continued with Gfobal Rock,
trips around the island, pancake races, STEM activitles, RE days, swimming, salling, trips to France and
Litils Canada plus our numerous visitors across the year. We were winners of the lsle of Wight Spelling
Bee and also took several places In the Isle of Wight Speech and Drama competition. We ran our first
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Buslness Buddies who raised £500 for school funds. Our year ended with the Indian Street Marke! with
our Holl paint feslival and our traditional Leavers breakfast and assembly.

In 15/16 we set ourseives lhe goal of setling up growing beds and ir 16/17 we achieved thls around the
school, producing food for classes to cook with, The Squlrrel's Den o provide snacks with and the maln
kitchen to provide school meals with.

Famlly engagement conlinued through Facebook, our webslle, Class Dcjo and School Story. Invitation
to &l famiiies to join thelr child for lunch. Along with Parent Councll, LEAF and Parent Farum meetings
providing a wide range of mediums for femkies to engage with school.

We also featured in a BBC documentary called ‘No Mara Boys and Girls' which explored stereotyping
and gender equalily. The programme was aired nationally and we have had positive feedback as well
a3 schools wanling 1o visit and the DIE In talks with us and the Equallties depariment on craating
curriculsm material to enable all children reallse that they have aqual cholces, Mr Andre has also besn
a guest speaker al saveral conferances and been contacled by authars who have wrillan gender neutral
books.,

GOING CONCERN

After making appropriale enquiries, the board of trustees has a reasonables expectation that the academy
has adequale resources to continue in operational existence for he foreseeable future. For this reason
it conlinues to adopt the going concern basls in preparing the financlal statements. Further detalis
regarding the adopllon of the going concern basis can be found In the Accounling Policles.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Most of the School's Income is obtained from the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) in the form of
curent and caphal granis, lhe use of which Is restricted to particular purposes. The granls recalved during 2016/47
and the assacialed expendilure Is shown as restricted funds in the Stalement of Financial Aclivities. We have a
Financlal Management Procedures Policy which Includes alt processes and rules ralating to our finances. The
tots! funds heid on the balance sheet at 31 August 2017 was £1,853,862.

RESERVES POLICY

Avallable reserves at 31 Augus! 2017 (excluding penslon provision and restriclad fited assets are £273,232 (2018;
£265,137). Our aim Is to use the aocaled funding each year for the full benefi of the chidren cumrenfly altending the
school. Howaver we do budget a small amount each year for unforeseen clreumstances, fo support planned
projects to benefil the fulure development plans of the school and the upkeep of the bullding.
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INVESTMENT POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

Our funds are held in 2 bank accounts with Lioyds Bank and accrue interest. We currantly do not invest
in any Investmen! activities which could pose a risk. Any Investmenls are made with regard to the Charily
Commisslon guidance in relation to kvesimenta,

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

All adminisirative and suppart staff are entiled (o membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme. The
Schoofs share of the Scheme's assels Is curently assessed to be lass than ils Hiabiiles in the Scheme, and
consequenty the School's balance sheet ghows a net lablily of £471,000, The Actuary's assumptions are very
much infiuenced by the current economic cimale bath nationally and Intemationally,

The Trustees' have developed a Risk Register which is reviewed regularly by the Money Group.

Plans for future periods

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

The Trustees will continue working with the learners, siaff end famifies of the echool, to enhance
provision in the local area to outstanding. We are committed o Improving the educational and wellbeing
outcomes for all our children, ensuring poshive fuluras.

Lanesend Primary School is commitied o developing education and learning for the 21% century both
at a local and natlanal leval.

To furlher imprave puplls’ social expeclations, manners and etiquelie in order fo be more
confident in e

To further support emolional develapment/menial health issues In pupls and families

To structure SIP so Improvements and actions are clearly evidenced by the truslees

To ensura 100% of aduils In school recognise their responsibilities

To conslder ways lo Imprave the quallty of local Early Years provisien

To further develop Leadership and Management throughout the school by becoming a leaching
schacl

To target use of Pupil Premium lo raise attalnment for disadvantaged higher achievers

To targel use of Sporls Premium to instil a habit of a healthy lifestyle

To increass tha proportion of outstanding lessons o at least 50%

Furiher davelopmant of the new tracking systam for Reading, Writing and Maths

To furlher devalop girls’ self-befiaf and confldence

To further develop boys' ahility to communicate emotions and feeling

Further development of spaaking and listening across the school

Furthar development of EYFS/KS1 phonics programme

Focussed development of writing for el pupll groups

Further development of phonics into spefling across the school

Focussed development of knowledge and application of mulliplication 1ables (part of national
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testing Y4 summer 2020)

To increase the Average Point Scare in EYFS 1o national lavels

To increase the number of children achleving Stage 4+ phonics in EYFS

To improve progress rates In elements of writing in EYFS

Further development of mathematical language using tha learning environment and influencing
home confldence In EYFS

» To increase opportunities for self-assessment in EYFS

g 8 ¢ @

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS
Each of the persons who are Truslees at the time when this Trustees' raporl is approved has confirmed
lhat:

. so far as thal Truslee (s aware, there is no relevani audit Information of which the charitable
company's audilors are upaware, and

] that Trusiee has taken all the steps that oughl {o have been laken as a Truslee in order to be
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the charltable company's auditors
are aware of that information,

The audilors, James Cowper, were appointed at the Member's meefing 10" May 2017

This Trustees’ report, Incorporating a strataglc report, was epproved by order of the board of trustees,
as the company directors, on /5, // 7 // 7 and sligned on the board's behalf by:

=

Karen Herbert-Duff
Chalr of Trustees
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SCOFE OF RESPONSIBILITY

As lrustess, we acknowledge we have ovarall responsiblilty for ensuring thal Lanesend Primary School has an
effective and appropriate system of conirol, finenclal and otherwise. However such a system is designed lo
manage rather than eliminate the risk of fallure lo achieve business objectives, and can provide only
reasonable and not absolule assurance agalnst material misstatement or [oss.

The board of trustees hes defegated the day-to-day responsibility io the Headleacher, as Accounting Officer, for
ensuring financlal controls conform with the requirements of both propriely and good financial management and
In accordance with (he requirements and responsibitities assigned to It in the funding agreement between
Lanesend Primary School and tha Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible far reporting to
the board of trusteas any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal conlrol.

GOVERNANCE

The Information on govemance included here supplements thal described in the Trustees' report and in the
Slatement of Trusiees' responsibllities. The board of lrustees has formally met 9 times during the year.
Attendance during the vear st meetings of the board of trustees was as follows:

Truslea Mesatings attended Out of a possible
Kenneth Bums 7 9
Lauren EHiott 6 ]
Andrea Flux 8 9
Karen Herbest-Duiff, Chair ] 9
Joanna Hunter, Vics Chalr 8 g
Emma Norton 7 9
Keatherine Pallray 8 9
Jeremy Robinson 8 9
Caroline Slecs ) 9
Tara Hepkinson 8 |
Paul Herbest 0 0

Review of governance ook place in September 2017 regarding the 3rd year as an academy (2016/2017). The
School {mprovement Plan for 2015 - 2018 was raviewed and changes made to fulfil targets for July 2017.The
trustees’ also comploted a skills audil to identify gaps in the group of trustees which can be fllled as new
trustees are appoinled or co-opted. The lrustees also held saveral question and answer sessicn on being
OFSTED raady and a saif-evalualion, this was then put inlo practice during the OFSTED Inspection in July
2017. It was reparied that the truslees knew fhe school well and make a sirong contribution to scheol
improvement, making sure that areas of development have Improved for example the outcomes in maths are
now much stronger and the gualily of teaching enables them to meke good progress from their starting points.
g\he lrustez? had a clear awareness of how o further Improve autcomes for children particularly in wriling and
2 most able,

The trusiees ara developing new systems to identify priorities in meetings as well as challenges to the
leadership team so that thelr effactiveness can ba clearly idenlified &t any point. There will be a clearer School
Improvement Plan which will show who Is responsible for each priorily, how it will be achieved and measured
and what aciivitias will bring improvement.

The trustees are very keen to develop a preschool provision either with a merger with a local provider or In-
house as part of Lanesend Primary, this Is to Improve incoming atlainment data and ensure a child's jouney Is
seamless. Early mestings have taken place during thls year,

The Money Group is a sub group of the main board of truslees, Its purposs Is to oversea the financial affairs
and report as sppropriale 1o the board of trusiees. They underiake a regular review of financial policles and
procadures, monitor and review incomefexpenditure ensuring compliance with the overall financial ptan for the
Academy. The group elso considers and recommends the acceplance/non-scceplance of the Academy's
budgat et the start of the year. This group also monitors and reviews the overall effactiveness of leadership and
managament; contribules to the monfioring of mattars conceming the school premises and grounds, Human
Resources, security and Heallh and Safety and safeguarding.
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Altendance at meelings in the year was as follows:

Trustee Maetings attendad Out of & possible
Caroline Sice 8 g

Kennath Burns 3 4

Emma Norton B 9

‘Tara Hopkinson 9 8

Katherine Palfrey 7 2]

Jaremy Robinson 4 9
REVIEW OF VALUE FOR MONEY

As Accounling Officer, the Headleacher has responsibilty for ensusing that the academy delivers good value In
the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers 1o the educational
and wider societal outcomes achieved in raturn for the taxpayer resources recelved.

The Accounting Oificer considers how the academy’s use of ils resources has provided good value for monay
during each academic year, and reports lo the board of trustaes where value for money can be Improved,
inchiding the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The Accounting Officer for the academy has
delivered improved value for money during the year by:

Good OFSTED July 2017

Significant book purchase were made to improve the guided reading books

Significant developments In the Early Years outslde provision

Kay skills end values for the children's future success Is bullt upon evary day, Including Britlish valuas,
- laarning Is developing afongside the curiculum as well as purchasing a third sel of ipads

Outside area usad ragularly in teaching and leaming and we bulli a chicken coup and developed and

installed growing areas for the whole schoo!

Tralning with our leaming consultant for teaching and learning

ICT training for all slaff In September 2016

Team bullding activity for all staff Octobar 2016

Further Investment in Performance Arts

Investment in naw sports equipmant for whole school

Confinued to provide opporiunilies for our Rematkable Children through & range of activities.

Secured Teaching Schaol pllot with Portswood Taaching Aliance - further development In 17/18

Audit for 15/18 was signed off as appropriale

Conlinue to invest in apprenticeships

All echool tips subsidisad

T ® 8 2 8 » s 8 8 g

Lanesend is extramely effective in its deplayment of resources because:

Its resources are of high quality.

All individual needs can be and are met both academically and emolionally.

The oulcomes achiaved recognise the value added thal the schaol provides,

The schoal employs a Family Team to support the all children and familjes

The echool employs and AEN Team la support the naeds of individual children

The school, employs a Finance and Admin team who support the whole school community

Wa have volunieer menlars to help support vulnerable children.

The schoof environment Is mainteined to a high lavel,

Staff want to work at Lanessnd and comprehensive training and development for example ICT teaching

and |leaming, geography and history, as well as first aid and safeguarding completed In & cycle,

Funding sireams are explored to enable new projecis throughout the school

. We have a highly efficient and effective School Davelopment Manager and Finance Team that promote
carelul and accurale accounting.

. Children contribute Ideas for resources through the Pupil Council

. The school conlinues to work with our Data Consullant to develop effeclive tracking and dala systems in
schoul to raflect the assessment made In the classroom

. Wa Invested in another set of ipads so that mare children can access these at one time

. We used a grant plus our own funds to Invest In a Balance Bike program and set of bikes lo develop
cyching skills snd gross molor skill i

® & & = 2 ® B F @
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. Wa used our PE and Sporis Grant alongside some of our delegated funding to Improve the sporting
engagament of all our children, this included the purchase of new sports squipment and the continued
employment of an LSA to run sports clubs every day afler school. We bought In independent sporis
coaches such as ballst and dance lo widen chlldren's expstiences. The PE lead attended clusier
meetings and organised exira events. We celebraled sporling achievements bolh In and out of school
mare widely. We are curtently working fowards our Goid Sporis for All Award.

THE PURPOSE OF THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL

Tha syslem of internal control Is designed to manage risk lo & reasonable leve! rather than to eliminate all risk
of failure to echleve policles, alms and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of inernal control Is based on en ongoing process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks (o the achlevement of academy policles, aims and objectives, lo evaluale the likelihood
of thosa rigks belng reallsed and the impact should they be reallsed, and to manage them efficlently, effectively
and sconomically. The systam of inlernal control has baen in place in Lanesend Primary Schoo! for the year 1
Slgptamber 2016 to 31 August 2017 and up fo the dale of approval of the annual report and financial
sialements.

CAPACITY TO HANDLE RiISK

The board of lrustees has reviewad the key rigks lo which the academy is exposed together with lhe operating,
financlal and compliance conirola that have baen implemented to miligate those risks. The board of trustees is
of the view that there Is a formal ongolng process for identifying, evaluating and managing the academy’s
significant risks, that has been in place for the year 4 September 2016 {o 31 August 2017 and up {o the date of
approval of the annual report and financial siatemenis, This process is regularly reviewed by the board of

{rustees,
THE RISK AND CONTROL FRAMEWORK

The academy’s syslem of infernal financial contre! is bassd on a framework of regular management information
and administrative procedures Including the segregalion of duies and a eyslem of delegation end
accourtabfilly. In parlicular, Il includes:

. comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and perlodic financial reporis
which are raviewad and agreed by the board of lrustees;

® regular reviews by the Monsy Group of reporls which indicale financial performance against the

foracasts and of major purchase plans, capilal works and expendlture programmes;

selting targels to measure financla! and other performance;

clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or caplial invesiment) guldelines.

defagallon of autharily and segregation of dulies;

identtfication and management of risks,

The board of lrustees has considered the need for a specific intemal audit function end has dacided not to
ap;:olnt(ara ;nlemal audlior, Howsver, the Truslees have appointed Emma Norlon, a Trusles, as Responsibie
Officer .

The RO's role {carried out by a trusles) Includes giving advice on financlal malters and performing a range of

chacks on the academy’s financial systems. In pariicular the checks carried out [n the current period included:

. Follow up an previous year's checks on the banking of funds recelved within schoaol. The process s now
being followad comacty.

. Checks on the sales Invoicing process for room hire elc, all found lo be complete and process being
followed as par the Finance Management policy

. Observation of the census process far enlering Information on the system

. Review of the syslem for recording the spending of the Pupil Premium Fund, how this s spent per child
and the interventions in place,
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REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS

As Accounting Officer, the Headieacher has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the syslem of
Internal control, During the year In question the review has been infonmed by:

the work of the Responsible Officer;

the wark of the extemal auditors;

the financia! management and gavernance salf-assessment process:

1he work of tha exacutive managers within the academy who have rezponsibility for the development and
maintenance of tha internal control framework.

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the Implicalions of the result of their revisw of the systern of

interna! control by the and a plan lo address weaknesses and ensure conlinuous improvement of the system [s
in place,

a ¢ 9 0

Approved by order of the members of the board of trusiges on / 8// and signed on their behalf, by:

S o s ——

Karen Herbert-Dufi Caroline Sic
Chalr of Trustees Accounting
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STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As Accounting Officer of Lanesend Primary Schoal | have considered my responsibility to nolify the academy
trust board of trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material Iregularily, Impropriety
and non-complianca with ESFA terms and conditions of funding, under the funding agreement In piace belween
ihe acadamy trust and the Secratary of State for Education. As pert of my consideration | have had due vegard
to the requirements of the Academles Financial Handhook 2016.

| confirm that | and the academy trust board of {rustees are able to identify any material Iregular or improper
use of funds by the academy trust, or material non-complience with the terms and conditions of lunding under
the academy trust's funding agreement and the Academies Financlal Handbook 2018.

| confirm that no Instances of malerial imegularily, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been
discovered to date, If any Instances are idenlified after the date of this statement, these will be nollfied lo the

bpgrd of tust nd ESFA.

I\

Caroline Sice
Accounting Officar
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

The Trustess (who act as governors of Lanesend Primary School and are also the directors of the charilable
company for the purposes of company law) are responsibte for preparing the Trusleas' report and the financial
statemenis in accordance with the Annual Accounts Direction Issued by the Educalion and Skills Funding
Agency, Uniled Kingdom Accounting Standards {United Kingdem Generally Accepted Accounling Practice)
and applicable law and regulatians.

Company law raquires the Trustees 1o prepare financial statements for each financlal year. Under company
law the Trusiees must not approve the financial statemants unless ihey ere satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of {he charitable company and of its Incoming resources and application of
resources, including its income and expenditure, for that period. n preparing fhese financtal stalements, the
Tsuslees are required 1n:

. selact suilable accounting policies and then apply them conslstently;

D observe lhe methods and principles of the Charitles SORP 2015 and the Academles Accounts
Direction 2016 10 2017;

. make judgmentls and accounling estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

. prepare the financial slatemenls on the going concem basis unless it is inappropriate o prasume Lhat
the charitable company wili continus in business,

The Trusteas are respansible for keaping adequate accounting records thet are sufficient to show and explain
the charitable company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financlal position
of the charitable company and enable them to ensure thal ths financial slalements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assels of the charflable company and
hence for taking reasonable sleps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other Irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operalion the charitable company applles
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriely and of good financlal
management. Thay are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DIE have been spplied for
the purposes inlended,

The Truslees are responsible for the malntenance and Integrily of the corporate and financial information
included on the charilable company’s website, Legislation in the Uniled Kingdom gaveming (ha preparation
and dissemination of financial statements may differ from lagistalion In other jurisdictions.

Approved by ordar of the members of the board of trustees on /g /z// 7 and signed on its behalf by:

@

Karen Herbert-Duff
Chalir of Trustaes
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
LANESEND PRIMARY SCHOOL

OPINION

Wa have audited the financlal stalemenis of Lanesend Primary School for the year ended 31 August 2017
which comprise the Statement of financla! activilles incorporaling income and expenditure account, the
Balance sheel, the Statement of cash flows and the relsted notes, Including a summary of significant
accounting policles. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in thelr preparation Is applicable
law, United Kingdom Accounting Stendands (Uniled Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Praclice),
including FRS 102 ‘The Financlal Reporling Standard epplicable in the UK and Republiic of Ireland’, the
Charllies SORP 2016 and the Academles Accounts Direction 2016 to 2017 Issued by the Education and Skilis

Funding Agency.

This report is made solely to the acadamy's members, as & body, in accardance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
tha Companles Act 2008, Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might sieie lo the academy’s
members thoss matlers we are required to slate to them in an Auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibiliy to anyone olher than the academy
and lis membears, a8 a body, for aur sudit werk, for this report, or for the opinlons we have formed.

{n our opinion the financlaf slalements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the academy’s affaire as at 31 August 2017 and of its incoming
resources end application of resourcas, including its income and expenditure (or iha year then ended;

- have been propery prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Ganerally Accepled Accounling
Practice; and

. have bean prapared in accordance wilth the requirements of the Companles Acl 2008, the Charitles
SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts Directlon 2018 to 2017 Issuad by the Education and Skills
Funding Agency.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducled our audit in accordance wilh intemationzl Sianderds on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibiities under those standards are furlher describad In the Auditer's responsibllities
for (he audil of the financlal statemenis section of our repoil. We are Independent of the acadamy In
accordance with the ethical raquirements that are relevant lo our audit of the financial statemants in the United
Kingdom, Including the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard, and we have {ulfilled our others ethical
responsibilities in accordance with thase requirements. We belleve that the audit evidence we have oblalned is
sufficlent and appropriale to provide a basls for aur opinion.

CONCLUSIONS RELATING TO GOING CONCERN

We have nothing to raport In respect af the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us lo

raport to you whera:

. the Trustees' usa of the going concem basls of accounting in the preparation of the financiel statements
Is not appropriale; or

. the Trustees have not disclosed in the financial statemenls any identifled material unceriainties that may
cast significant doubt about the academy's ability lo conlinue lo adopt the going concern basls of
accouniing for @ period of at least twalve months from the dale when the financial statements are

authorised for [ssue.

OTHER INFORMATION

The Truslees are responsible for the other Information. The other Information comprises the information
included In the Annual report, other than the finencial statements and our Auditor's report thereon. Qur opirion
on the financial stalemenls does not cover the Information and, except to the extant otherwiss explicitly staled
in our report, wa do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. .

Page 45



LANESEND PRIMARY SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantes)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCGIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
LANESEND PRIMARY SCHOOL

In conneclion with our audit of the financlal stalsments, our responsibliity Is to read the other information and,
in doing so, conslder whether Ihe other Information is materially Inconsistent wilh the financlal statements or our
knowledge oblafned in the audit or otherwise appears to be malerislly misstaled. If we Idenlify such material
incansistencles or apparent material misstalements, we are required to determine whether there ls a malerial
misstatement in the financlal statemenls or a melerial misstatement of the ather informaltion. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there Is a material misstatement of this ather information, we ara
required to report that fact.

Wae have nothing to repart in this regard.,
OPINION ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

In our apinion, based on the work undertaken In the course of the audil:

- the Information given In the Trustees' Repor! inchding the Strategic Report for which the financial
statements are prepared Is consistant with the financial staiements.

o the Truslees’ Report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal raquirements.
MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

In the light of owr knowledge and understanding of the academy and Iis environmeant oblained in the course of
the audit, we have not identifled material misstalements in the Trustees' Report including the Strategle Report,

We have nothing fo report In respect of the following matlers in relalion to which the Companles Act 2006

requires us to report to yau I, in our opinion;

. adequate accounling razords have not been kept, or relums adequale for our audit have nol been
recelved from branches nol visiled by us; or

. tha financial stalements are not In agreement with the accounting records and retums; or

- certaln disclosures of Trustees' remunerations specified by law nol made; or

. wa have not recelved all the Informiation and explanations wa require for our audit.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF TRUSTEES

As explalned mare fully In the Statement of Trusiees' responsibilities, the Trustees {who are also the direclors
of the academy for the purposes of company law) are responeible for the praparation of the financial
slatements and for being salisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such intemal control as the
Trustees delemine is necessary lo enable the preparation of financial stalements thal are free from malerial
missialemant, whether due to fraud or emor,

in preparing the financlal slatemenls, the Truslees are responsibla for assessing the academy's abilily fo
continue as a golng concamn, disclosing, as applicable, malters related lo golng concem and using tha golng
concem basis of accounling unless the Trustees elther intend fo liquiciata the academy's or lo caase opamations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TQ THE MEMBERS OF
LANESEND PRIMARY SCHOOL

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objeclives ara to oblain reasonable assurance about whether the financial stalements as a whola are free
from material misstalement, whather due to fraud or error, and lo Issue an Auditor's report that includes our
opinfon. Reasonable assurance is a high fevel of assurance, but s not a guaraniae that an audit conducted in
accordance wilh ISAs (UK) will always detect a materia! missialement when it exists, Misstalements can arise
from fraud or emor and are consldered material If, Indlvidually or In the aggregats, they could reasonably be
expecied {o Influence the economic declsions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilifias for the audit of the financial stalamanis is located on the Financlal
Redprrﬂng Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibifities. The descripfion forms part of our
Auditor's report,

Louise Hallsworth {Senlor statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of

James Cowper Kreston

Chartered Accounlanis and Statutory Auditor

8th Floor

The White Bullding
1-4 Cumberlend Place
Southampton
Hampshire

S0156 2NP

Date: 10-/a- &01}
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LANESEND PRIMARY SCHOOL
(A company limitad by guarantes)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS' ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO LANESEND
FRIMARY SCHOOL AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

In accordance with the lerms of our engagement letler dated 10 May 2017 and further lo the requirements of
the Educalion and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as Included in the Academies Accotnis Direclion 2016 to
2017, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expendilure disbursed
and income racelved by Lanesend Primary Schaol during the yaar 1 Seplamber 2016 to 31 August 2017 have
been applied to the purposes identified by Parilament and the financial {ransactions conform to the authoritles
which gavern lhem.

This report is made solely to Lanesend Primary School and the ESFA In accordance with the lerms of our
engagemer leller. Our work hes been underlaken so that we might state to Loanesend Primary School and the
ESFA those matlers we are requirad lo state in a repart and for no other purpose. Yo the fullest extent
permitiad by law, we do nol accepl or essume responsibilily to anyone other than Lanesend Primary School
and the ESFA, for our work, for this repart, or for the conclusion we have formed.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF LANESEND PRIMARY SCHOOL'S ACCOUNTING OFFICER AND
THE REPORTING ACCOUNTANT

The Accounting Officer Is responsible, under the requirements of Lanesend Primary School's funding
agreement with the Secrelary of State for Education dated 27 August 2014, and the Academles Financlal
Handbook extant from 1 Seplember 2016, for ensuring that expendilure disbursed and income received is
appled 'h.: the pumposes intended by Parllament and the financlal transaclions conform lo the authorlfies which
govemn them,

Our responsibiiities for this angagement are established in the Unitad Kingdom by our profession's ethical
puldance and are to oblain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement latier and the
requirements of the Acadsmies Accounts Direction 2016 to 2017. We report to you whelher anything has come
to our altantion In carrylng oul our work which suggests that in all material respects, expendliure disbursed and
income raceived during the year 1 Seplember 2016 {o 31 August 2017 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactlons do not conform 1o the authorities which govemn them,

APPROACH

Woe conducled our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounls Direclion 2016 to 2017 issued by
the ESFA. We performed & limited assurance engagement as defined In our engagement letter.

Thae objeclive of a limited assurance engagement Is to perform such proceduras as ta oblaln Information and
explanations In order to provide us with sufficient gpprapriate svidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity,

A limited assurance engagemant Is more limiled in scape lhan a reasonable essurance engagemant and
consequently does not enable us o oblain assurance that we would hecome awara of all signiftcan! matlers
thal might be idenlified in a reasonable assurance engagemant. Accordingly, we do not express a positive
opinion.

Our engagament Includes examination, on a test basls, of evidence relavant to the regularily and propriety of
the academy’s Incoma and expendilure.
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS' ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO LANESEND
PRIMARY SCHOOL AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (continued)

CONCLUSION

in the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that In all malarial respecis the
expendilure disbursed and Income received during the year 1 September 2016 to 31 August 2017 have not
been applied lo purposes intended by Pariament and the financlal transactions do not conform lo the
authorities which govemn them.

O

Jamas Cowper Kraston
Chartered Accountanis and Statutory Auditor

8th Floor

The While Buildlng
1-4 Cumberland Place
Southamplon
Hampshire

S015 2NP

pate: (Z /I - &.Of?- )
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LANESEND PRIMARY SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantas)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

INCOME FROM:

Donations and caplal grants
Charitable activitles

Other Irading activities
Investments

TOTAL INCOME

EXPENDITURE ON:
Charilable activitles

TOTAL EXPENDITURE

NET INCOME/
{EXPENDITURE) BEFORE
TRANSFERS

Transfers batwaen Funds

NET INCOME /
{EXPENDITURE) BEFORE
OTHER RECOGNISED GAINS
AND LOSSES

Actuarial galns/(losses) on
defined benafit pansion
schemes

NET MOVEMENT IN FUNDS

RECONCILIATION OF
FUNDS:

Tolaf funda brought forward

TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED
FORWARD

The noles on pages 53 to 71 form part of thase financial slalements.

Note

Sworn

19

23

Restricted
Unrestricted  Restrcted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2017 2017 2017 2017 2016
£ £ £ £ 3
7,074 - 7,398 14,472 15,899
105,265 1,785,796 - 1,891,061 1,827,841
31,971 . - 31,971 34,373
233 - - 233 472
144,543 1,785,786 7.398 1,937,737 1,878,685
72,321 1,912,254 60,885 2,045,570 1,778,073
72,321 1,912,254 60,985 2,045,570 1,778,073
72,222 (126,458) 33,597} {107,833) 100,612
{6,669) - 8,669 - -
63,553 (126,458) (44,928) (107,833) 100,812
- 114,000 - 111,000 (184,000)
63,5583 {15,458) (44,928) 3,167 (63,388)
14,292 {260,455) 2,098,558 1,850,695 1,934,083
77.845 (275,613) 2,051,630 1,853,862 1,850,695
_——— —/—ee— emee—m—m—n —————
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FIXED ASSETS
Tengible assels

CURRENT ASSETS
Stocks

Debtors

Cash at bank and in hand

LANESEND PRIMARY SCHOOL

(A company limited by guarantee)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 09154494

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2017

Nole

15

16
17

CREDITORS: amounts falllng due within

one year
NET CURRENT ASSETS

18

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
Defined bensfit penslon scheme liablity 23

NET ASSETS INCLUDING PENSION

SCHEME LIABILITIES

FUNDS OF THE ACADEMY

Restricted income funds:
Restricted incoma funds

Restricted fixed asset funds
Restricted Income funds excluding

pension liabliity
Pension reserve

Tolal restricted incoms funds

Unrestricted Income funds

TOTAL FUNDS

18
19

19

2017

£ £

2,051,630
6,720
77,596
321,870
408,186
{132,954)

273,232

2,324,862

{671,000)

1,853,862

1
195,387
2,051,630
2,267,017
(474,000)

1,776,017

77,845

1,863,862

2018
E £
2,056,558
4,817
77,971
340,985
423,773
(158,638)
265,137
2,381,695
(511,000)
1,850,885
e
250,845
2,008,558
2,347,403
(511,000)
1,836,403
14,202
1,860,695
— |

Tha financial slalements on pages 50 to 71 were apgroved by the Trustees, and authorised for Issue, on

and are slgned on thelr behalf, by:

Karen Herbert-Duft
Chalr of Trusteas

The notes on pages 53 to 71 form part of these financial statements.
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LANESEND PRIMARY SCHOOL
{A company limited by guarantaee)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

Note
Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash (used In)/provided by operating aclivilles 21

Cash fiows from investing actlvitles:

Dividends, Interest and rents from invesiments
Purchase of tenglble fixed assels

Net cash used in Investing activitles

Change in cash and cash equlvalents in the year
Cash and cash equivalents brought forward

Cash and cash equivalents carried forward 22

The notes on pages 53 ta 71 form pert of these financial statements.
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2017 2018

£ £

(3,281) 175,199

233 472

{16,087) (128,675)

(15,834) (128,103)

{19,115) 47,096

340,985 293,889

321,870 340,985
1
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LANESEND PRIMARY SCHOOL
{A company imited by guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

ACGOUNTING POLICIES

1.1

1.3

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been appifed consistantly,
axcept whare noled), judgments and key sources of estimalion unceriainly, Is set out below.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financlal stalements of the academy trust, which Is a public benafit entity under FRS 102, have
been prepared under the historical cos! convention in accordance with the Financia! Reporling
Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland {(FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by
Charlties: Statement ol Recommended Practice appticable to charities prepating their accounts in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland
(FRS 102) (Charilles SORP (FRS 102}), the Academles Accounts Direction 2016 to 2017 Issued by
ESFA, the Charllies Act 2011 and the Companles Act 2006,

Lansgend Primary School constitules a public benefit entily as defined by FRS 102,
Fund accounting

Unrestricted Income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of
the charitable objects of the academy at the discretion of ihe Truslees.

Reslricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
Imposed by the Department for Education where the asset acquired or creatad Is held for a specific
purpose,

Reslricted general funds comprisa all other restricled funds received with resrictions imposed by
the funder and Include grants from tha Department for Education.

Golng concem

The Trustees assess whether the use of golng concern Is appropriate, l.e. whether there are any
matsrial uncerainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the abllity of
the academy fo conlinue as a going concem. The Truslees make this assessment in respact of A
period of at least one yesr from the dale of authorisation for issue of the financial statensnts and
have concluded that the academy trust has adequale resources to continue in operalional existence
for the forasesabla future and thers are no material uncertalntios about the academy trust's abilily to
continue as & going concer, thus they continue to adopl the going concern basis of accaunting in
prepasing the financial slatements.
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LANESEND PRIMARY SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

14

1.5

Income

All income Is recognised once the academy has entillement to the income, it Is probable that the
income will ba received and the amount of income recelvable can be measured raliably,

Granis are Included In the Statement of financial activities incorparating income and expenditure
accounl on a racelvable basls. The balance of income recelved for spacific purposes but not
expended during the period is shown in 1he relevant funds on the Balance sheet, Where income Is
recelved In advance of entitlement of recalpt, Its recagnition I deferred and Included in creditors as
deferred Income. Where entitlement occurs before income is recolved, the income Is accrued.,

General Annual Grani is recognised in full in the Slatemart of financlal activilies incorporating
incoma and expsnditure account in the year for which it Is racelvable and any abatement in respect
of the period is deducted from Income and recognised as a tability,

Capltal grants are recognised when there Is entittement and ara not deferred over the life of the
asset on which they are expended. Unspenl amounts of capilal grant are reflected In the balance In
the restricted fixed assat fund.

Donallons are recognised on a receivable basis where recelpt Is probable and the amount can be
rellably measured,

Other income, Including the hire of faciiities, Is recognised in the period In which il is recelvable and
to the exlent the gouds have heen providad or on completion of the service.

Expenditura

Expendlture Is recognised once thers is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic
benafil to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benelits will be required in
seltlement and the emount of the obligation can be measured reliably, Expenditura Is classified by
activily. The cosls of each aclivily are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs,
including support costs Involved in undertaking each acivity, Direct cosls altrbutsble to a single
activity are allocated directly 1o that aclivity. Shared costs which contribute to more than ong
aclivity and support costs which are not altributable to a single aclivity are apportioned betwsen
those aclivities on a basls consistent with the use of resources, Central slaff costs are eliocated on
the basis of time spent, and depreclalion charges allocated on the pottion of the assel's usae,

Expendilure on charilable aclivities are cosls incurred on Ithe academy's educalional operations,
including support costs and those costs relating to the governance of tha academy eppointed lo
chariiable activitiss.

All expendilure Is inclusive of irrecoverable VAT,
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LANESEND PRIMARY SCHOOL.
(A company limitad by guarantea)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuad)

1.8 Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

1.9

All assets costing more than £2,000 are capitalised and are camied at cost, net of dapreciation and
any provision for Impalrment.

Where fanglbla fixed assels have been acquired with the ald of specific grants, either from the
govemment or from the private seclor, they are Included In the Balance sheet at cost and
depreciated over thelr expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions atlached
io the funding requiring the continued use of the assat, the related granls are credited to a
restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of financlal eclivilles incorporaling Income and
expenditure account and carred forward In the Balance sheet. Depreciation on the ralavani assels
is cherged direclly lo the restricled fixed assel fund in the Statement of financial aclivilies
incorporating income and expenditure accounl. Where tanglble fixed assels have been acquired
with unrestricted funds, depraciation on such assels is charged fo tha unrestricted fund.

Depraciation Is provided on all tanglble fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculsted o
wiite off the cost of these asssts, less thelr estimated residual vaiue, over thelr expacted useful
livas on tha following basas:

Long-tarm leasehold proparty -  Land - Straight line over 125 years
Bulldings - Siraight line over 50 years

Fixturas and fittings - 26% Reducing balance

Oulside area -  Siraight line over 10 ysars

A revlew lor impalment of a fixed asset [s carmied out if events or changes in circumslances
Indicata thal the canying value of any fixed assst may nol be recoverable. Shortfalls betwaen the
camylng value of fixed assels and thelr recoverable amounts are recognised as Impairments.
Impairment losses are recognised In the Statement of financial activitles incarporating incoma and
expend|tura account.

Intarast recelvable

Interest on funds hetd on deposit Is included when recelvable and the amount can be measured
rella:ly by the academy; this Is nommally upon notification of the [nterest pald or payabls by the
Bank.

Stocks

Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net reallsable value afler making due aflowance for
obsolete and slow-moving stocks. Cost Includes all diract cosls and an appropriate proportion of
fixed and variable overheads.

Dabtors

Trade and other debtars are recognised at the sattlement amount afler any trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued al the amount prepald net of any trade discounts due.

1.10 Cagh at Bank and In hand

Cash al hank and In hand includes cash and short term highly liquld Investments with a shor
maturity of thres months or less from the date of acquisilion or opening of the deposit or simifar
account,
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LANESEND PRIMARY SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.11 Liabilitles and provisions

Liabllitles and provislons are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance sheet date as a
resulf of a pasl event, it is probable that a Wransfer of economic benefit will be required In
setllement, and the amount of tha setllemant can be estimated reliabty, Liabilities are recognised at
iha amount that the academy eanticipates it will pay to satfle the debt or the amaount it has received
as advanced payments for the goods or services it must provide. Provisions are measured at the
best estimate of the amounts requirad to seltie the ohligation. Where the effact of the time value of
monay {s material, the provislon is based on the present value of those amounts, discounted at the
pre-tax discounl rate that reflects the tisks specific to tha liability, The unwinding of the discount Is
recognised within interest payable and similar charges.

1.12Financial Instruments

The academy only holds baslc financial instruments as defined in FRS 102, The financial assels
and financlal llabililies of the academy and thelr measurement basis are as follows:

Financlal assets - trade and other deblors are basic financial instruments and ara debt instrumenis
measured at amortised cost as delalled in note 17. Prapayments are nol financial instruments.
Amounts dua lo the academy's wholly owned subsidiery are held al faca value less any
Impaimment. Crsh st bank Is classified as a baslc financlal instrument and is measured at face
value,

Financlal liabiities - trade credilors, accruals and other cradilors are financial Inslrumenits, and are
measured al amortised costs as datalled in note 18, Taxation and social sacurily are not included In
the financial Instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income s not deemed to be a financial
liabilily, as the cash selllement hes elready laken place and there is an obligation to deliver
services rather than cash or another financial Instruments. Amounts due to the academy's wholly
owned subsidlary are held at face value less any impalrment,

1.13 Taxation

The academy Is considered to pass tha lesis sel out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act
2010 and therafore it meets Lhe definition of a charlable company for UK corporalion lax purposes,
Accordingly, the academy is potentlally exempt from taxation in respact of Income or capital gains
recelved within categorles coveared by Chapter 3 Parl 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section
256 of the Taxatlon of Chargeable Gains Act 1892, lo the exlent that such income or galns are
applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

1.14 Pensions

Relirament benefits o employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension
Scheme ("TPS") and the Local Governments Panslon Scheme ("LGPS"). These ara defined benefit
schemes,

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and confributions are calculaled S0 as {o spread the cost of
penslons over employees' working lives with the academy In such a way thal the pension cost is a
substantfally level percentage of cumenl and future pensionable payrall. The contibutions are
determined by the Government Acluary on the basis of quiadrennlal valuations using a prospective
unit cradit method, As stated in note 23, the TPS is a mulil-employer scheme and there is
insufficient information available to use defined benefit accounting. The TPS Is therefore treated as
a defined contributlon scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised In the
perlod to which they relate,
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LANESEND PRIMARY SCHOOL
{A company limlted hy guarantas)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Tha LGPS Is a funded scheme and the assels are held separately from thosa of he academy trusl
In separate iruslee administerad funds, Pension scheme assels are mesasured at fair value and
liabllities are measurad on an actuarial basis using the projected unit cradit method and discounted
al a rale equivalent to the current rate of relum on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term
and currency lo the liabllities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennfally and are
updated at each Balance shest dale. The amounts charged lo operating surplus are the current
servica costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments,
They are included as part of staff cosls as Incurred. Nei Intsrest on the net defined benefit
liabliftyfassel Is also racognised In the Statement of financlal activities Incorperaling income and
expenditure account and comprises the Interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and Interest
incoms on the schems assets, calculaled by mulliplying the fair valua of the scheme assels at the
beginning of the parlod by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The differance between
the Interest income on the scheme assels and the aclual return on the scheme assels is recognisad
in other recognised galns and losses.

Acluarial geins and losses are recognised immediately In olher recognised gains and losses.
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LANESEND PRIMARY SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.15 Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment

Estimates and judgments are conlinually evaluated and are based on historice! experlence and
olher faclors, Inclucting expectations of future evenls that are belleved to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Crilical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The academy frust makes estimales and assumpllons concerning the fulure, The resulting
accounting estimales and assumptions will, by definllion, seldom equal the related aciual resulls.
The estimales and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounls of assels and liabililies within the next financial year are discussad below.

The Eresent valua of the Local Government Pension Scheme deftned benefil llabiiity depends on a
number of faclors that are delermined on an ecluarial basls using e varisty of assumptions. The
assumptions used In delermining the net cosl (Income) for pensions include the discount rate, Any
changes in lhese assumptions, which are disclosed In note 23, will impact the carrying amount of
the pension Habflity. Furthenmore a roll forward approach which prolacls rasulls from the latest full
actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2016 has been used by lhe acluary in valulng the
pensions liabliity al 31 August 2017. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll
forward approach and a full acluarial valualion would Impact on the carrying amount of the pension
liabllity.

Crliical areas of judgment:
Tanglble fixed assets

Tangible fixad assels are depraciated over their useful lives taking Inlo accoun! residual velues,
where appropriate. The actual lives of the atsels and resldual valuas are assessed annually and
may vary depending on a number of factors. Resldual valus assessmenls consider issues such as
the remalning life of the assat and projected dlspasal values.

Operaling lease commitments

The academy lrust has entered Into commerclal lease contracts and as a lessee It obiains use of
properly, plant and equipmenl. The classificalion of such leases as operating or financa lease
requires the academy trust fo delermine, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, whether It relains or acqulres the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
assels and accordingly whelher the lease requires an asset and {lablllty to be recognised In the
Balance Shael,
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LANESEND PRIMARY SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantae)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

INCOME FROM DONATIONS AND CAPITAL GRANTS

Restricted
Unrestricted  Restrictad fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
M7 2017 2017 2017 2016
£ £ £ E [
LEAF donalion 7,074 - - 7,074 4,646
Capilal Granis - - 7,398 7,398 11,353
7,074 - 7,398 14,472 15,989
[E——
Total 2016 4,646 - 11,353 16,888
———— e —— ——————— — — ———
OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES
Unrestricted  Restricted Total Tatal
funds funds funds funds
2017 2017 2017 2016
£ £ £ £
uirrels Den incoma 30,439 - 30,439 33,527
Hire of facllities 1,532 - 1,532 848
31,971 - 31,971 34,373
p——————§ f—— —
Total 2016 34,373 - 34,373
T——— ae———
INVESTMENT INCOME
Unrestricted  Restricted Total Tolal
funds funds funds funds
2017 2017 2017 2016
£ £ £ [
Bank {nterast 233 - 233 472
- = = ———
Tolsl 2018 472 - 472
p——an —— P ——4 e
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FUNDING FOR ACADEMY'S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS

DIE/ESFA grants

General Annual Grant {(GAG)

Other DE/ESFA granis

Other governmant grants

Local authorily grants

Other funding

Unlform and sundry income

Meals Income
Trip mcome

Toial 2016

EXPENDITURE

Educallonal Aclivitias:
Dlrect cosls
Support cosls

Total 2016

Unresircted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2017 2017 2017 2016
£ £ £ £
1,357,202 1,357,292 1,342,751
240,386 240,386 216,353
- 1,597,678 1,597,878 1,559,104
- 188,118 188,118 195,441
- 188,118 ige,118 185,441
35,050 . 35,050 22,778
30,032 - 30,032 23,823
40,183 - 40,183 26,595
408,265 - 405,265 73,2086
105,285 1,785,786 1,891,061 1,827,841
b —— 3 ———3 ——  —————1 = ——————

73,205 1,754,645 1,827,841

———— 3 =]

Staff costs Premises Other costs Tota! Total
2017 2017 2017 2017 2016
E £ £ £ £
795,626 39,412 137,308 972,347 807,961
763,320 57,188 252,717 1,073,223 870,112
1,558,946 96,598 380,026 2,045,570 1,778,073
———1 — | ———— e me—

1,366,270 83,244 328,559 1,778,073
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

DIRECT COSTS
Total Tata!
2017 2016
£ £
Educallonal supplies 54,699 55,480
Staff development 7,231 10,821
Educalional consullancy 53,796 52,393
Wages and salaries 636,093 587,443
Nalional Insurance 59,756 49,489
Pension cost 99,777 82,175
Depreclation 60,985 80,180
972,347 907,961
_ f———————§
At 31 August 2016 807,961
3
SUPPORT COSTS
Tolal Total
2017 2016
E £
Panslon finance chargs 12,000 12,000
Technology costs 21,117 3,604
Staff development 12,357 7,098
Malntenance of premises and equipment 44,627 23,084
Clegning 6,338 17,500
Rent & rales 6,221 6,608
Energy costs 18,106 17,626
Insurance 8,034 6,080
Securily and transport 3,338 1,946
Catering 98,740 81,186
Bank interesl and charges 225 205
Other supposi costs 32,610 18,437
Trip expanditura 38,706 29,801
Govemance cosls 8,484 7.773
Wages and salaries 582,300 512,014
National Insurance 22,884 18,235
Pansion cost 158,036 106,914
1,073,223 870,412
At 31 August 2016 870,112

During the year ended 31 Augusl 2017, the academy incurred the {ollowing Governance costs:

£8,484 (2016 - £7,773) Included within the table above in respact of Educational activities.
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9, NET INCOME/(EXPENDITURE)
This Is staled after charging:

2017
£
Depraciation of langible fixed assets:
- owned by the charlly 60,995
(—————————— 3
10. AUDITORS' REMUNERATION
2017
£
Fees payable to lhe academy's uditor and its assoclates in
respact of:
Audlling of financlal slatemenis of tho academy 4,000
All alher non-audit services not included above 1,800
p———

Page 62

2016

60,160

2016

3,750
1,835




".

L ANESEND PRIMARY SCHOOL
(A company limlied by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

STAFF COSTS

Stalf cosls were as follows:
2017 2016
£ £
Wages and salarles 1,170,015 1,082,757
Soclal securily cosls 82,740 67,724
Operaling costs of defined benefit pension schemes 257,813 199,088
1,510,588 1,348,570
Supply leacher cosls 48,378 18,700
1,558,046 1,366,270
j—————3 —

The average number of parsona employad by the academy during the year was as follows:

2017 2016
No, No.
Teachers 15 16
Adminislartion and supporl 80 66
Management 2 2
77 74
=

Average headcount exprassed as a full ime equivalent:
2017 2016
No. No.
Teaching slaff 15 15
Administration and support staff 25 23
Manapement 2 2

48 40

The number of employees whose employee benefils (excluding employer pension costs) exceaded
F60,000 was:

2017 2016
No, No.
In the band £680,001 - £70,000 1 1

?.:hrlang the year relirement benefils wers accruing lo 4 trusiees in respect of defined benefit pension
mes.

The total expense Included In the accounts for key personnel amounted to £133,843 (2016 - £1 29,000)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

TRUSTEES' REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES

One or more Trustees has been pald remuneration or has recelved other benefits from an employment
with the academy lrus!. The Princlpal and other staff Truslees only raceiva remuneration in respect of
services they provide undertaking the roles of principal and other staff members under their conlracts of
emplayment, and nol In respact of itheir role as Trusless, Tha value of Trustees' remuneration and other

benelits was as follows:

2017
£
Caroline Sice Remuneration 60,000-65,000
Penslon contributions pald 10,000-15,000
Tara Hopkinson Ramuneratlion 35,000-40,000
Pension contributlons pald 5,000-10,000
Andrea Flux Remuneration 30,000-35,000
Pansion conlributions paid 0-5,000

David Cooper Remuneration

Pension contribullons pald

During the year, no Trustees recelived any relmbursement of expenses (2016 - £NIL).

TRUSTEES' AND OFFICERS' INSURANCE

2016

£
60,000-65,000
5,000-10,000
30,000-35,000
5,000-10,000
15,000-20,000
0-5,000
45,000-50,000
5,000-10,000

The academy trus! has opled into the Depariment for Education's risk proteclion arrangement (RPA), an
allernative to Insuranca where UK government funds cover losses that arise, This scheme prolects
trustees and offlcers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on

academy business, and provides cover
officers indemnily element from the overall cost of the RPA schema.

up to £10,000,000, il Is not possible lo quantify the Trustees and

OTHER FINANGE INCOME
2017 2016
£ £
Inlerest income on penslon scheme asseis 12,000 16,000
Interest on pension scheme liabllities {24,000) {27,000)
{12,000) (12,000)
_— _——r————
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LANESEND PRIMARY SCHOOL
(A company fimited by guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Long-term
leasehold Plant and Qutdoor
property machinery arga Total
£ 3 £ £
Cost
At 1 September 2016 2,062,141 61,948 80,988 2,205,077
Additlons 1,405 9,139 5,523 16,067
Al 31 August 2017 2,063,646 71,087 88,511 2,221,144
Depraclation
At 1 Saptember 2016 78,065 22,355 8,008 108,519
Charge for the year 40,161 12,183 8,651 60,985
Al 31 August 2017 118,226 34,638 16,750 169,514
Net book value
Al 31 August 2017 1,945,320 36,549 69,761 2,051,630
- ——— - ——— ] ———— — — ]
At 31 Augusl 2016 1,984,076 39,503 72,889 2,086,558
——————————— e e ————]
STOCKS
2017 2016
£ E
Fintshed goods and goods for resale 6,720 4,817
p = ———— ] e
DEBTORS
2017 2016
£ £
Trade deblors 5,708 10,480
VAT recoverable 13,860 18,124
Other debtors 9,867 3,116
Prepaymenis and accrued income 48,163 46,237
77,598 77.971
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18. CREDITORS: Amounts falling due within one year

2017 2016
£ £
Trade craditors 48,225 97,425
Other taxation and socla! securily 22,217 20,770
Other creditors 18,503 -
Accruafs and deferred Income 45,009 40,441
132,954 158,636
— o —— |}
2017 2016
£ E
Deferred Income
Deferred incoma at 1 September 2018 23,439 26,384
Resaurces deferrad during the year 35,904 23,439
Amoaurils released from previous years {23,4339) {26,384)
Deferred Income al 31 August 2017 35,904 23,439
e ——————— ———r———

The majorily of the defermed income amount relates (o UIFSM, the remalning balance relates (o other
sundry income streams,

19. STATEMENT OF FUNDS

Balance Balance
brought Transfers Gains/ carrled
forward Income Expenditure Infout {Losses) forward
£ E E £ £ £
Unrestricted funds
General Funds 14,202 144,543 (72,321) (8,668) 5 77,845
Restricted funds
General Annual Grant
(GAG) 250,845 1,357,292 (4 412,750) - - 195,387
Other ESFA/DIE grants - 240,388 (240,386) - - -
Local authorily grants - 188,118 {188,118} - - -
Penslon raserve (511,000) - {71,000) - 111,000 {471,000)

(260,155) 1,785,796  (1,912,254) E 111,000 (276,613)

Restricted fixed assat funds

Restricted Mxed assel

funds 2,096,558 7,398 (60,995) 8,669 - 2,051,630
Tolal resiricted funds 1,836,403 1,783,194 {1,973,249) 8,669 111,000 1,776,017
Total of funds 1,850,685 1,937,737  (2,045,570) - 111,000 1,853,862

The spaclflc purposes for which the funds are o be applied are as follows;
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LANESEND PRIMARY SCHOOL
(A company limlted by guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

19, STATEMENT OF FUNDS {confinusd)

Unrestricted funds
These funds sra for the general use of the academy and may be used fowards meeling any of the
charltable objects of the academy irust af the discretion of the trustaes.

Restricted funds

The General Annual Granl represents funding recelved from the ESFA durign the year to fund the
continuing activitles of the academy. Other ESFA grant Incomae is specific to puplis aor the academy liself.
Lacal aulharity grants fund puplis from the local area for specific additional needs.

Rastricted fixed assat funds
These funds are those spacifically designated for capltal expendilure.

Under the funding agreament with the Secrelary of State, the academy was nat subject to a limit on the
amounl of GAG thal it could carry forward at 31 August 2017,

20. ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS

Restrictad

Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total

funds funds funds funds

2017 2017 2017 2017

£ £ £ £

Tangible fixed assels - - 2,051,630 2,051,830
Current assefs 77,845 328,341 - 406,186
Creditors due within one yaar - (132,954) . (132,954)
Provislons for lisbllities and charges - {471,000) - {471,000)

77,845 (279,813} 2,061,630 1,853,862

21. RECONCILIATION OF NET MOVEMENT IN FUNDS TO NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING

ACTWVITIES

2017 2016

£ £

Nat (expendliure)income for the year {as per Stalement of Financial
Activilies) {107,833) 100,612
Adjustment for:
Depreclalion charges a0,905 80,160
Dividends, interest and rents from investmenis {233) (472)
Increase in stocks {1,903) (995)
Decrease in deblors 375 18,114
Decrease in crediors {25,682) (31,220
Defined benefit panslon scheme finance cost 71,000 29,000
Net cash {used In)/provided by operating activities (3,281} 176,189

————— e
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22, ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

23.

2017 2016

£ £

Cash In hand 321,870 340,985
Total 321,870 340,085

e ey

PENSION COMMITMENTS

The academy's employaes belong to two principal pension schemas: the Teacher's Penslon Scheme for
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Gevemment Pension Scheme
(LGPS) for non-teaching staif, which Is managed by the Isle of Wight Councll. Both are Multi-employer
dafined benefit pension schemas,

Tha lalest actuarlal valuation of the TPS related to the pariod ended 31 March 2012 and of the LGPS 31
March 2016,

Thera were no oulstanding or prepaid contributions at either the beginning or the end of the financial
year,

Teachers' Panslon Scheme
Introduction

The Teachers' Penslon Schame (TPS)Is a slalutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by
the Teachers' Pensions Ragulations (2010) and, from 1 April 2014, by the Teachers' Pansion Scheme
Reguialions 2014, Membership Is aulomalic for full-ime teachers In academles and, from 1 January
2007, automalic for teachers In part-ime employment foltowing appeintment or a change of contraci,
glthough they are able lo opt out,

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members conlribute on a ‘pay as you go' basis — these
contributions along with those made by smployers are credied to the Exchequer. Retirement and olher
pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Pariament.

Valuation of the Teachers' Pensicn Scheme

The Government Acluary, using norma) actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the
TPS In accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valualions and Employer Cost Cap) Directions
2014 published by HM Treasury. The aim of the review is to specily the level of future contribullons,
Acluarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumplions about the value of fulure costs, design of
benefits and many other factors. The latesl actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as al 31 March
2012 and in accordance with the Public Service Penslons {Valuations and Employer Cost Cap)
Directions 2014. The valualion report was published by the Depariment for Education on 9 June 2014,
The kay elements of the valuetion and subsequant consuttation are:

e employer conlribution rales sel at 16.48% of pensionable pay, including a 0.08% employer
administration charge (currently 14.1%)

= lotal scheme liabilities {pensions currently In payment and the estimaled cost of future benelits) for
service to the effective dale of £191,500 milllon, and nollonsl assets {estimated future contribulions
tagether with the notional investments held at the vafuation dale} of £176,600 million giving
notional past service deficlt of £94,900 million

+  &n employer cost cap of 10.9% of pansionable pay wil} be appiied te future valuations

o lhe assumed real rate of relum Is 3.0% in excess af prices and 2% in excess of eamings. The rate
of real eamings growth is assumad to ba 2.76%. Tha assumed nominal rale of raturn Is 5.06%.

During the pravious year the smployer contribution rate was 14.1%. The TPS valuation for 2012
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PENSION COMMITMENTS (continuad)

determined an employer rale of 16.4%, which was payable from September 2015, The next valuation of
{he TPS Is curranily underway based on Aprll 2016 dats, whereupon the employer contribullon rate Is
expacted to be reassessed and will be payable from 1 April 2018.

The employer’s penslon costs paid to TPS in the period amounled to £89,777 (2016 - £92,175).

A copy of the valuation report and supporiing documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions wabsite
(www.teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employars/2014/08/publication-of-the-valualion-report.aspx).

Under the definitions set out In FRS 102, the TPS Is a mult-amployer pansion scheme. The trust has
accounted for (ts contributions to the scheme as If it were a defined contribution scheme. The frust has
set out abova the Informaltion available on the schame.

Local Government Penslon Schema

The LGPS Is a funded defined banefit scheme, with assets held In separale trustes-administerad funds.
The tolal contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2017 was £122,000 {2016 - £172,000), of
which employer's conlributions tolalled £99,000 (2016 - £60,000) and emplayees’ contribulions totalled
£23,000 (2016 - £79,000). The agreed contribullon rates for future years are 23.6% for employers and
between 5.5% and 12.5% for employees.

Parllament has agreed, at the request of the Secrelary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the
avent of academy closurs, outstanding Local Government Pension Schame liabilities would bs met by
Ihe Depariment for Education. The guaraniee came Into force on 18 July 2013,

Principal actuarial assumptions:

2017 2016
Discount rate for scheme labllitles 2.50 % 210 %
Expectad return on scheme assels at 31 Augusi 280 % 3.00%
Rate of increase in salaries 280 % 410 %
Rate of increase for pensions in payment / Inflallon 240 % 210 %

The curren! mortality assumptions Include sufficient sllowance far fulure Impravements In mortalily rates.
The assumed life expectations on relirement age 65 are:

2017 2018
Retiring today:
Males 223 224
Females 24.8 24.5
Reliring in 20 years:
Males 239 238
Femsles 26,5 28.7
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PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued)

The academy's share of the assels in the scheme was:

Fair value at Falr value at

31 August 31 August

M7 2016

£ £

Equlties 486,000 345,000

Properly 36,000 26,000
Cash and other liquid assets 7,000 -

Bonds 180,000 152,000

Total market value of assels 729,000 523,000

The amounts recognised In the Statement of financlsl activities Incorporating income and expenditure

accourt ara as follows;

2007 2016
£ £
Current sarvice cost {158,000) (107,000)
Interest Income 12,000 15,000
Interest cost {24,000) {27,000)
Tolal (170,000) {119,000)
3 _————
Actual return on scheme assels 76,000 60,000
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit uhligation were as follows:
2017 2016
£ £
Opening defined banefit obligation 1,034,000 634,000
Current service cost 158,000 147,000
Interest cost 24,000 27,000
Employee conlributions 23,000 22,000
Acluerial {gains)liosses (35,000) 244,000
Benefits paid {4,000} -
Closing defined benefit obligalion 4,200,000 1,034,000
——————— e
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23, PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued)

Moveiments In the fair valus of the academy's share of scheme assets:

2017 2016

£ £

Opening falr value of scheme assets 523,000 338,000

Interest income 12,000 15,000

Aclisarial losses 76,000 60,000

Emgployer contributions 99,000 90,000

Employes conlributions 23,000 22,000
Benefits paid (4,000) -

Clozing falr value of scheme assels 729,000 523,000

24. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

Al 31 August 2017 the tolal of the Academy lrust's future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases was:

2017 2016
£ £
Amounts payable:
Within 1 year 2,164 1,426
Betwesen 1 and 5 years 3,786 -
Total 5,950 1,426

I ————— e ——______—-— 3

25. MEMBERS' LIABILITY

Each member of the charitabla company underlakes to conlribute lo the assels of the company in the
evenl of Il being wound up while hefshe is a member, or within ane year after he/she ceasss fo be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £ 10 for the debts and liabllities contracled

befors he/she ceases {o ba 8 member.

26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

No relaled party transaclions took place in the perod of accouni, other than certain frustees’
remuneration and expenses already disclosed In nots 12.

27. CONTROLLING PARTY
Thare I3 na overall controlling party.
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